2014-2015

Billerica Public Schools

STUDENT AND PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES HANDBOOK

SECTION II

Mr. Timothy Piwowar Superintendent of Schools 365 Boston Road Billerica, MA 01821

Important School Information: Elementary Schools:

Ditson Elementary School	Ms. Eileen Roake	39 Cook Street	978-528-8510
Dutile Elementary School	Ms. Christine Balzotti	10 Biagiotti Way	978-528-8530
Hajjar Elementary School	Mrs. Elizabeth Devine	59 Rogers Street	978-528-8550
Kennedy Elementary School	Mr. David Marble	20 Kimbrough Road	978-528-8570
Parker Elementary School	Mr. Russell Marino	52 River Street	978-528-8610
Vining Elementary School	Ms. Victoria Hatem	121 Lexington Road	978-528-8630

Middle and High Schools:

Locke Middle School	Mr. Tony Garas	110 Allen Road	978-528-8650
Marshall Middle School	Mr. Michael Rossi	15 Floyd Street	978-528-8670
Billerica Memorial High School	Mr. Thomas Murphy	35 River Street	978-528-8710

Central Administration

Superintendent of Schools:	Mr. Timothy Piwowar	978-528-7908
Assistant Superintendent:	Ms. Dede Galdston	978-528-7920
Director of Finance and Operations:	Ms. Robin Hulsoor	978-528-7910
Director of Special Education:	Ms. Judith Norton	978-528-8591
Director of Guidance:	Mr. Steven Bottari	978-528-8760
Transportation Services:	Mr. James O'Donnell	978-528-7910
Director of Technology:	Mr. Mark Bishop	978-528-7945
Director of Nurses:	Ms. Carole Butze	978-528-7907
ELL Coordinator:	Ms. Anne Blake	978-528-8557
Director of Food Services:	Ms. April Laskey	978-528-8782

Dismissal times:

School:	Start:	Dismissal:	Early Release:	Half-day Dismissal
Ditson Elementary School	8:35	2:45	12:45	11:40
Dutile Elementary School	7:55	2:05	12:05	10:55
Hajjar Elementary School	8:35	2:45	12:45	11:40
Kennedy Elementary School	8:35	2:45	12:45	11:40
Parker Elementary School	8:35	2:45	12:45	11:40
Vining Elementary School	7:55	2:05	12:05	10:55
Locke Middle School	7:30	1:40	11:40	10:40
Marshall Middle School	7:30	1:40	11:40	10:40

Billerica Public Schools

Section II – Table of Contents

Contents

MISSION STATEMENT	4
VISION STATEMENT	4
THEORY OF ACTION:	4
INTRODUCTION TO THE STUDENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES HANDBOOK	5
NON-DISCRIMINATION	5
ENTRANCE AGE/MANDATORY ADMISSIONS REQUIREMENTS	5
SCHOOL/CLASS PLACEMENT, INCLUDING STUDENTS WHO TRANSFER INTO THE DISTRICT	6
ADMISSION OF INTRADISTRICT TRANSFER STUDENTS	6
Elementary/Middle School Transfer For Day Care Purposes	6
ATTENDANCE POLICY	7
Absences	7
STUDENT DISMISSAL PRECAUTIONS	7
HOMEBOUND INSTRUCTION	8
CHILD ABUSE/NEGLECT: CHAPTER 119, SECTION 51A	8
Requirement to File Reports on Injured Children	8
Bullying Defined	13
Complaint Procedures	15
False Accusations	15
Response/investigation of reports of bullying	15
HAZING	17
CH. 269, S. 17. CRIME OF HAZING; DEFINITION; PENALTY	18
CH. 269, S. 18. DUTY TO REPORT HAZING	18
HEALTH SERVICES	18
MEDICATION POLICY	18
Field Trip Medical Procedures	19
MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH IMMUNIZATION PROGRAM	20
INTERROGATIONS AND STUDENT LOCKER/DESK SEARCHES	20
LOST OR DAMAGED BOOKS	21
PARENT/TEACHER COMMUNICATIONS	21
PROBLEM-SOLVING STRATEGY	22

PROMOTION AND RETENTION OF STUDENTS	22
PUBLICITY	22
SCHOOL VISITS	23
STAYING AFTER SCHOOL	23
SECTION 504/ADA NOTICE	23
PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS UNDER SECTION 504 AND THE ADA	24
ACCESS TO SPECIAL EDUCATION	24
SPECIAL EDUCATION PARENT ADVISORY COUNCIL	26
STUDENT CONDUCT	26
EXPULSION/SUSPENSION	26
ALCOHOL USE BY STUDENTS	30
DRUG ABUSE POLICY	30
SMOKING/USE OF SMOKELESS TOBACCO PRODUCTS	30
UNAUTHORIZED WEAPONS AND OTHER DANGEROUS ITEMS	30
SCHOOL BUS DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES	31
STUDENT RECORDS	32
NON-CUSTODIAL PARENT'S RIGHTS	32
SCHOOL RECORDS	33
RETENTION OF STUDENT RECORDS	33
DIRECTORY INFORMATION NOTICE	33
TEACHING ABOUT DRUGS, ALCOHOL, AND TOBACCO	34
PARENTAL NOTIFICATION RELATIVE TO SEX EDUCATION	34
WELLNESS POLICY	35
TITLE I NOTIFICATION TO PARENTS REGARDING PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS OF CLASSROOM TEACHERS	35
BILLERICA PUBLIC SCHOOLS EMAIL DIRECTORY	
STUDENT ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY	
GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS PREFERENCE:	
PHOTO RELEASE OPT-OUT FORM	

Items available on the Billerica Public Schools Website under the "Parent/Student" tab:

- AHERA Asbestos Notification
- Community Building Use
- Billerica Public Schools Health Curriculum Outline, K-12
- Memorandum of Understanding Between the Billerica Public Schools and the Billerica Police Department
- Wellness Policy
- Concussion Policy

Billerica Public Schools

2014-2015

MISSION STATEMENT

To become the destination for education in the Merrimack Valley.

VISION STATEMENT

All students will learn when they have high quality teachers, supportive environments, and rigorous and relevant curriculum, within a culture of trust.

THEORY OF ACTION:

If we commit and have the courage to CARE:

COMMUNITY – fostering collaboration and partnerships

ATMOSPHERE – welcoming, safe, and respectful for all

RIGOR AND RELEVANCE – preparing our students for college and career in the ever-changing global society

EXCELLENCE AND **E**QUITY – promoting and celebrating the inherent dignity of all

....then we will create a culture in which each member of the community becomes empowered to reach his or her maximum intellectual, social, and emotional potential.

The Theory of Action is a plan to accomplish the mission and reach the vision of the Billerica Public Schools.

INTRODUCTION TO THE STUDENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES HANDBOOK

The purpose of this handbook is to provide students and parents with information about policies and procedures that affect all students in the Billerica Public Schools. The Handbook-Part II accompanies the school-specific handbooks which outline the expectations and procedures specific to a building. The policies contained in this book are derived from both federal and state laws and regulations or the Billerica School Committee policies and procedures. It is important that both students and parents thoroughly read and review the information contained in this handbook as well as the school-specific handbook, as they both define the rights that students have and responsibilities that they are held accountable for. Essential to each student's lifetime development is acquiring and developing perception, reason, choice, and evaluation. To learn and exercise such skills it is necessary that students understand their rights and responsibilities so that they may make informed decisions throughout their school career.

NON-DISCRIMINATION

State law provides the following:

"Every person shall have a right to attend the public schools of the town where he actually resides, subject to the following section. No school committee is required to enroll a person who does not actually reside in the town unless said enrollment is authorized by law or by the school committee. Any person who violates or assists in the violation of this provision may be required to remit full restitution to the town of the improperly-attended public schools. No person shall be excluded from or discriminated against in admission to a public school of any town, or in obtaining the advantages, privileges and courses of study of such public school on account of race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin or sexual orientation."

The Billerica Public Schools is committed to maintaining a work and educational environment free from all forms of discriminatory conduct. Discrimination based on race, religion, national origin, gender, sexual orientation or disability will not be tolerated in the Billerica Public Schools (Title IX).

The Billerica Public School District does not discriminate on the basis of disability with regards to admission, access to services, treatment, or employment in its programs or activities (Sect. 504).

Every child shall have a right to attend the public schools of the town where he/she actually resides. No child shall be excluded from or discriminated against in admission to a public school of any town, or in obtaining the advantages, privileges and courses of study of such public school on account of race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin or sexual orientation (M.G.L. ch. 76, section 5).

The Billerica Public Schools will take action to investigate all complaints and may discipline or take other appropriate action against any member of the school community who is found to have violated this policy. Any student or staff member who feels he or she had been a victim of discrimination because of race, religion, national origin, disability, gender identity, sexual orientation or gender bias, should file a report with the Harassment Complaint Officer- Mr. Steven Bottari, Director of Guidance.

ENTRANCE AGE/MANDATORY ADMISSIONS REQUIREMENTS

Effective September 1990 for the 1990-91 school year, and thereafter, a child must be five years old on or before **August** 31, in order to enter kindergarten and six years of age on or before September 1st to enter first grade.

A birth certificate and health records must be provided by parents registering their child for kindergarten/first grade unless the parents were residents in Billerica at the time of the child's birth. Proof of residency is required.

During the school year any family/child moving into Billerica from another city, town, or state who has already been

enrolled in school, would be registered into the same grade from which the child transferred. If the family/child moves or transfers into Billerica over the summer months, the child would be registered into whatever grade is recommended by the transferring school.

For transferring into high school, the student will be registered into the grade level in accordance with the number of credits earned toward graduation:

Class of 2015 Class of 2016 and beyond

 Grade 9: (Not applicable)
 up to 25

 Grade 10:
 up to 45
 up to 55

 Grade 11:
 up to 75
 up to 85

 Grade 12:
 up to 100
 up to 115

SCHOOL/CLASS PLACEMENT, INCLUDING STUDENTS WHO TRANSFER INTO THE DISTRICT

The placement of students is the responsibility of the Billerica Public Schools and the school principal.

Social development, scholastic achievement, learning styles, emotional needs and class size are concerns taken into account when placing children with their respective teachers. It is the goal of administrators and teachers that children are placed in a well-balanced classroom to promote the best possible social and intellectual development of all students. Since the placement of students is the responsibility of the Billerica Public Schools and the school principal, personal requests for preferred teacher assignments may not be honored. The Billerica Public Schools reserves the right to change student class placement.

The school district will enroll and place students who transfer into the district based upon, but not limited to, an examination of the course of study and level of academic attainment of the student when determining the student's appropriate grade placement or eligibility for high school graduation.

ADMISSION OF INTRADISTRICT TRANSFER STUDENTS

ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOL TRANSFER FOR DAY CARE PURPOSES

Parents should make every effort to obtain day care or babysitting within their neighborhood elementary/middle school attendance area.

In the event of the need for a transfer of elementary/middle schools due to day care or babysitting, parents should make a formal request on the form provided to their elementary school principal. Requests are to be received by June 1st, prior to the next school year. Elementary/middle principals will forward requests to the Director of Finance and Operations..

Effects upon school enrollment and transportation will be the criteria upon which requests will be considered. Transfers must be for a complete school year. The Assistant Superintendent is responsible for reviewing transfer requests.

Transportation will not be provided from day care/babysitter in one elementary/middle attendance area to an elementary/middle school in a different attendance area. Transportation will be provided from day care/babysitter to the elementary/middle school in the same elementary attendance area. For example, if the day care/babysitter is located in the Parker School area, transportation will be provided to Parker School and not to other elementary/middle schools.

The pick-up and drop-off locations will be the same for **EVERY** day at an approved bus stop. Pupils will not be dropped off or picked up at different bus stops on different days.

ATTENDANCE POLICY

According to Chapter 76, Section 1, of Massachusetts General Law, students are expected to attend class every day that school is in session. Billerica Public Schools believes that regular and punctual school attendance provides an essential foundation for educational progress and assists students in developing habits necessary for success in college and career. Students who are absent miss critical classroom instruction, opportunities for social interaction with teachers and peers, and clarification of assignments. Extended absences impair academic progress and undermine student grades. The goal of the Attendance Policy is to ensure that each student keeps his/her absences to a minimum so that he/she can take full advantage of the educational program and actively participate in the school community.

ABSENCES

An excused absence/tardy includes:

- Documented illness or injury signed by a medical professional on letterhead
- Bereavement/family funeral
- Major religious observances
- Extraordinary family circumstances (excused at the discretion of the principal)
- Documented court proceedings
- At the high school level up to three days for college visits

An *unexcused* absence/tardy is not covered by the aforementioned definition. Examples of an unexcused absence may include, but may not be limited to:

- Repetitive or chronic absence or tardiness due to illness or injury not documented by a doctor or other medical professional
- Family vacations
- Non-emergency family situations

When a child is absent, the parent or guardian must call or email the school within 30 minutes of the beginning of the school day to notify the school of the child's absence and the reason for the absence. If a call or email is not received, the school will call the parent or guardian informing them of their child's absence.

- After a student is absent three (3) consecutive days, the school nurse will also call home.
- When a student accrues 5 unexcused absences, a letter will be sent home, describing an action plan for addressing the students' attendance.
- After 10 unexcused absences, per MGL 76 Section 1, a referral will be made to the Supervisor of Attendance.

While attendance at school is important, a child with a fever or contagious disease should not be in school.

Parents may request work for students who are absent by calling the school office. Class work may be picked up at the end of the day or sent home with a sibling.

STUDENT DISMISSAL PRECAUTIONS

Each school shall set up procedures to validate requests for early dismissal to assure that children are released only for proper reasons and into proper hands, which means that only a staff member or a parent or guardian may accompany a child off school property without parental permission.

No student may be released on the basis of an unvalidated telephone call.

Children will not be dismissed to another adult, including a non-custodial parent, without the written permission of the custodial parent or guardian. Court documents such as restraining orders and custody agreements must also be on file in the school office. If there is concern that a non-custodial parent may attempt to dismiss a child without approval of the custodial parent, a confidential code word should be provided to the principal and used only in instances of dismissal to someone other than the custodial parent or guardian.

Custodial Parents and Legal Guardians are encouraged to alert the building administrators to any issues of which the school should be aware concerning custody matters.

HOMEBOUND INSTRUCTION

In accordance with 603 CMR 28.03(3) (c), the Billerica Public Schools provides an instructional program for any student who, in the judgment of the student's physician, will have to remain at home or in a hospital for a period of not less than fourteen days. As soon as it is known that the student will be absent from school, the Home or Hospital Instruction program may be authorized.

A Home or Hospital Program is an extension of the school program in which the student is enrolled. The curriculum content of the program is equivalent to that of the class that the student is enrolled in. The instructor coordinates the program with the teacher of the program that the child would be attending. The instructor assists the student in maintaining effective progress in school subjects, and the classroom teacher assigns the actual grades.

Procedures for initiating homebound instruction:

- Principal will inform parents that the form for Home and Hospital Services (Physician's Statement for Temporary Home or Hospital Education) is available on the web or through the school office.
- The Parent/Guardian will submit form to child's Physician.
- The Parent/Guardian will return the completed form to the School Principal who will forward a copy to the Director of Special Education for approval.
- Principal or Designee will ensure services are delivered in accordance with policy and monitor until student is able to return to school.

CHILD ABUSE/NEGLECT: CHAPTER 119, SECTION 51A

REQUIREMENT TO FILE REPORTS ON INJURED CHILDREN

a) A mandated reporter who, in his professional capacity, has reasonable cause to believe that a child is suffering physical or emotional injury resulting from: (i) abuse inflicted upon him which causes harm or substantial risk of harm to the child's health or welfare, including sexual abuse; (ii) neglect, including malnutrition; or (iii) physical dependence upon an addictive drug at birth, shall immediately communicate with the department orally and, within 48 hours, shall file a written report with the department detailing the suspected abuse or neglect.

If a mandated reporter is a member of the staff of a medical or other public or private institution, school or facility, the mandated reporter may instead notify the person or designated agent in charge of such institution, school or facility who shall become responsible for notifying the department in the manner required by this section.

A mandated reporter may, in addition to filing a report under this section, contact local law enforcement authorities or the child advocate about the suspected abuse or neglect.

(b) For the purpose of reporting under this section, hospital personnel may have photographs taken of the areas of trauma visible on the child without the consent of the child's parents or guardians. These photographs or copies thereof shall be sent to the department with the report.

If hospital personnel collect physical evidence of abuse or neglect of the child, the local district attorney, local law enforcement authorities, and the department shall be immediately notified. The physical evidence shall be processed

immediately so that the department may make an informed determination within the time limits in <u>section 51B</u>. If there is a delay in processing, the department shall seek a waiver under <u>subsection (d) of section 51B</u>.

(c) Notwithstanding subsection (g), whoever violates this section shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$1,000. Whoever knowingly and willfully files a frivolous report of child abuse or neglect under this section shall be punished by: (i) a fine of not more than \$2,000 for the first offense; (ii) imprisonment in a house of correction for not more than 6 months and a fine of not more than \$2,000 for the second offense; and (iii) imprisonment in a house of correction for not more than 2 1/2 years and a fine of not more than \$2,000 for the third and subsequent offenses.

Any mandated reporter who has knowledge of child abuse or neglect that resulted in serious bodily injury to or death of a child and willfully fails to report such abuse or neglect shall be punished by a fine of up to \$5,000 or imprisonment in the house of correction for not more than 2 1/2 years or by both such fine and imprisonment; and, upon a guilty finding or a continuance without a finding, the court shall notify any appropriate professional licensing authority of the mandated reporter's violation of this paragraph.

- (d) A report filed under this section shall contain: (i) the names and addresses of the child and the child's parents or other person responsible for the child's care, if known; (ii) the child's age; (iii) the child's sex; (iv) the nature and extent of the child's injuries, abuse, maltreatment or neglect, including any evidence of prior injuries, abuse, maltreatment or neglect; (v) the circumstances under which the person required to report first became aware of the child's injuries, abuse, maltreatment or neglect; (vi) whatever action, if any, was taken to treat, shelter or otherwise assist the child; (vii) the name of the person or persons making the report; (viii) any other information that the person reporting believes might be helpful in establishing the cause of the injuries; (ix) the identity of the person or persons responsible for the neglect or injuries; and (x) other information required by the department.
- (e) A mandated reporter who has reasonable cause to believe that a child has died as a result of any of the conditions listed in subsection (a) shall report the death to the district attorney for the county in which the death occurred and the office of the chief medical examiner as required by clause (16) of section 3 of chapter 38. Any person who fails to file a report under this subsection shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$1,000.
- (f) Any person may file a report under this section if that person has reasonable cause to believe that a child is suffering from or has died as a result of abuse or neglect.
- (g) No mandated reporter shall be liable in any civil or criminal action for filing a report under this section or for contacting local law enforcement authorities or the child advocate, if the report or contact was made in good faith, was not frivolous, and the reporter did not cause the abuse or neglect. No other person filing a report under this section shall be liable in any civil or criminal action by reason of the report if it was made in good faith and if that person did not perpetrate or inflict the reported abuse or cause the reported neglect. Any person filing a report under this section may be liable in a civil or criminal action if the department or a district attorney determines that the person filing the report may have perpetrated or inflicted the abuse or caused the neglect.
- (h) No employer shall discharge, discriminate or retaliate against a mandated reporter who, in good faith, files a report under this section, testifies or is about to testify in any proceeding involving child abuse or neglect. Any employer who discharges, discriminates or retaliates against that mandated reporter shall be liable to the mandated reporter for treble damages, costs and attorney's fees.
- (i) Within 30 days of receiving a report from a mandated reporter, the department shall notify the mandated reporter, in writing, of its determination of the nature, extent and cause or causes of the injuries to the child and the services that the department intends to provide to the child or the child's family.
- (j) Any privilege relating to confidential communications, established by <u>sections 135</u> to <u>135B, inclusive</u>, <u>of chapter 112</u> or by <u>sections 20A</u> and <u>20B of chapter 233</u>, shall not prohibit the filing of a report under this section or a care and protection petition under <u>section 24</u>, except that a priest, rabbi, clergy member, ordained or licensed minister, leader of a church or religious body or accredited Christian Science practitioner need not report information solely gained in a confession or

similarly confidential communication in other religious faiths. Nothing in the general laws shall modify or limit the duty of a priest, rabbi, clergy member, ordained or licensed minister, leader of a church or religious body or accredited Christian Science practitioner to report suspected child abuse or neglect under this section when the priest, rabbi, clergy member, ordained or licensed minister, leader of a church or religious body or accredited Christian Science practitioner is acting in some other capacity that would otherwise make him a mandated reporter.

(k) A mandated reporter who is professionally licensed by the commonwealth shall complete training to recognize and report suspected child abuse or neglect.M.G.L. c. 119, § 21 defines a mandated reporter as follows: Mandated reporter", a person who is: (i) a physician, medical intern, hospital personnel engaged in the examination, care or treatment of persons, medical examiner, psychologist, emergency medical technician, dentist, nurse, chiropractor, podiatrist, optometrist, osteopath, allied mental health and human services professional licensed under section 165 of chapter 112, drug and alcoholism counselor, psychiatrist or clinical social worker; (ii) a public or private school teacher, educational administrator, guidance or family counselor, child care worker, person paid to care for or work with a child in any public or private facility, or home or program funded by the commonwealth or licensed under chapter 15D that provides child care or residential services to children or that provides the services of child care resource and referral agencies, voucher management agencies or family child care systems or child care food programs, licensor of the department of early education and care or school attendance officer; (iii) a probation officer, clerk-magistrate of a district court, parole officer, social worker, foster parent, firefighter, police officer; (iv) a priest, rabbi, clergy member, ordained or licensed minister, leader of any church or religious body, accredited Christian Science practitioner, person performing official duties on behalf of a church or religious body that are recognized as the duties of a priest, rabbi, clergy, ordained or licensed minister, leader of any church or religious body, accredited Christian Science practitioner, or person employed by a church or religious body to supervise, educate, coach, train or counsel a child on a regular basis; (v) in charge of a medical or other public or private institution, school or facility or that person's designated agent; or (vi) the child advocate.

Legal References: M.G.L., Chapter 434, Legislative Acts of 1980

M.G.L., Chapter 119, Section 51A M.G.L., Chapter 119, Section 21

M.G.L., Chapter 176, Legislative Acts of 2008

HARASSMENT POLICY

The Billerica Public Schools is committed to maintaining a work and educational environment free from all forms of harassing conduct. Harassment based on race, religion, national origin, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation or disability will not be tolerated in the Billerica Public Schools. We expect all employees, students, contracted vendors, and other members of the school community to conduct themselves in an appropriate manner with respect, dignity, courtesy and fair treatment for all individuals. Persons who engage in harassment will be subject to discipline including, but not limited to, reprimand, detention, suspension, termination/expulsion or other sanctions as determined by the school administration. Each member of the school community has a responsibility to ensure that harassment does not occur.

I. (A) <u>HARASSMENT DEFINITION</u>: Harassment includes such things as unsolicited remarks, gestures or physical contact, or the display or circulation of written materials or pictures derogatory to either gender, or derogatory to racial, ethnic, religions, sexual orientation or disability groups.

<u>Gender Harassment (Sexual Harassment)</u> includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other physical or verbal conduct of a sexual nature when:

Submission is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of a student's participation in school programs or activities;

Submission to, or rejection of, such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for educational decisions affecting such individual;

Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonable interfering with an individual's work or educational performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive

working/educational environment.

II. POLICY:

- A. It is the policy of the Billerica Schools to maintain a learning and working environment that is free from harassment of any kind.
- B. It shall be a violation of this policy for any member of the Billerica School Community, whether student or staff, to harass any other member of the school community through conduct or communication of a harassing nature as defined in Section I.
- C. Each administrator shall be responsible within his or her school or office, for promoting an understanding of and assuring compliance with state and federal laws and school committee policy and procedures governing harassment and bullying.
- D. Violations of this policy will be cause for disciplinary action up to and including termination or expulsion

III. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES:

Anyone who has been harassed as defined above may report it to <u>any staff member</u>. The staff member will report the complaint to any member of administration. Then either the staff member or someone from guidance or an administrator acting as Complaint Investigator will investigate the claims of harassment. Every effort will be made to insure confidentiality in any investigation. Where appropriate, efforts will also be made to resolve the issue informally by mutual agreement before invoking the more formal procedures as set forth below. Any student involved in the process, whether as Complainant or the person charged (hereafter called "Respondent"), may be accompanied by an advisor throughout the process.

<u>Complaints or retaliation may be made anonymously however</u> no disciplinary action shall be taken against a student solely on the basis of an anonymous report.

Complaints Made by Students Involving Harassment or Bullying by a Student

Upon receiving a complaint, the Complaint Investigator will confer with the Complainant to gain an understanding and statement of the alleged facts. If the Complaint Investigator determines that such facts, if true, would constitute harassment, as defined above, the Complaint Investigator will take appropriate steps to fully investigate and/or resolve the complaint. Such steps may include, but are not limited to, the following;

- 1. Meet with the Respondent to obtain a response to the complaint.
- Request Complainant to write a letter to Respondent summarizing the nature of the behavior and requesting that it stop.
- 3. Request respondent to write a letter to complainant
- 4. Conduct a meeting with Complainant, Respondents, and other appropriate educational personnel.
- 5. Conduct interviews of possible witnesses to the alleged events
- 6. If necessary, report the matter to the local police or DSS if criminal activity or child abuse are involved.
- 7. Subject to the requirements of due process, take disciplinary action against Respondent, including without limitation, a letter of reprimand, a warning, suspension, or expulsion.
- 8. Refer Respondent to the principal or superintendent for disciplinary action.

Complaints Made by Students Involving Harassment by a Staff Member

Upon receiving a complaint, the Complaint Investigator will confer with the complainant to gain an understanding and a statement of alleged facts. As appropriate, the Complaint Investigator may take steps 1-6 above. The Complaint Investigator will be a person who is not in the same bargaining unit as the staff member. Any such investigation will be conducted in a manner consistent with the staff member's rights under the law and any applicable collective bargaining agreement. If it is determined that a staff member has engaged in harassment, the matter will be referred to the appropriate level of administration for consideration of discipline up to and including dismissal as consistent with the law and any applicable collective bargaining agreement.

- IV. <u>RETALIATION</u>: Retaliation in any form against any person who has filed a complaint relating to harassment will not be tolerated. No individual will be subject to any form of coercion, intimidation, retaliation, or discrimination for filing a report of harassment. The consequences for retaliation will be the same as for harassment. On the other hand, false accusations made in bad faith will not be tolerated.
- V. <u>NOTIFICATION</u>: Notice of this policy will be circulated to all schools and departments of the Billerica Public Schools and included in student handbooks.

Inquiries regarding compliance with Title 9, Chapter 622 may be directed to:

Ditson Elementary School	Ms. Eileen Roake	39 Cook Street	978-528-8510
Dutile Elementary School	Ms. Christine Balzotti	10 Biagiotti Way	978-528-8530
Hajjar Elementary School	Ms. Elizabeth Devine	59 Rogers Street	978-528-8550
Kennedy Elementary School	Mr. David Marble	20 Kimbrough Road	978-528-8570
Parker Elementary School	Mr. Russell Marino	52 River Street	978-528-8610
Vining Elementary School	Ms. Victoria Hatem	121 Lexington Road	978-528-8630
Locke Middle School	Mr. Anthony Garas	110 Allen Road	978-528-8650
Marshall Middle School	Mr. Michael Rossi	15 Floyd Street	978-528-8670
Billerica Memorial High School	Mr. Thomas Murphy	35 River Street	978-528-8712
District-Wide Assistant Superintendent	Mrs. Deanne Galdston	365 Boston Road	978-528-7920
District-Wide Coordinator	Mr. Steven Bottari	35 River Street	978-528-8760
Massachusetts Department of Education	75 Pleasant Street		781-338-3300
	Malden, MA 02148		
Director of the Office of Civil Rights	33 Arch Street		617-289-0111
Region I – U.S. Department of Education	Ninth Floor		
	Boston, MA 02110		

BILLERICA PUBLIC SCHOOLS BULLYING PREVENTION AND INTERVENTION PLAN

A safe learning environment is one in which every student develops emotionally, academically, and physically in a caring and supportive atmosphere free of intimidation and abuse. Bullying of any type has no place in a school setting. This commitment is an integral part of our comprehensive efforts to promote learning, and to prevent and eliminate all forms of bullying and other harmful and disruptive behavior that can impede the learning process. The Billerica School Committee and all of the Billerica Public Schools shall not tolerate bullying.

We understand that members of certain student groups, such as students with disabilities, students with a different sexual orientation, and homeless students may be more vulnerable to becoming targets of bullying, harassment, or teasing. The

school district will address the important task of creating a safe, supportive environment for vulnerable populations in the school community, and address the provision to all students of the skills, knowledge, and strategies to prevent or respond to bullying, harassment, or teasing.

The Billerica Public Schools will not tolerate any unlawful or disruptive behavior, including any form of bullying, cyberbullying, or retaliation, in our school buildings, on school grounds, or in school- related activities. We will investigate promptly all reports and complaints of bullying, cyberbullying, and retaliation, and take prompt action with a purpose to ending such behavior and restoring the target's sense of safety. We will support this commitment in all aspects of our school community, including curricula, instructional programs, staff development, extracurricular activities, and parent or guardian involvement.

The *Billerica Public Schools Bullying Prevention and Intervention Plan* is a comprehensive approach to addressing bullying and cyberbullying. The school district is committed to working with students, staff, families, law enforcement agencies, and the community to prevent issues of violence. In consultation with these constituencies, we have established the plan aimed at preventing, intervening, and responding to incidents of bullying, cyberbullying, and retaliation. The principal is responsible for the implementation and oversight of the plan and may assign certain tasks in the implementation and oversight of such tasks as necessary and reasonable.

The intervention plan contains the required elements for bullying prevention and intervention as described in M.G.L. Ch. 71, Section 370, which include the following:

- Definitions of bullying, cyberbullying, and retaliation;
- Clear procedures for students, staff, parents, guardians, and others to report bullying or retaliation;
- A provision for the anonymous reporting of bullying;
- Clear procedures for promptly responding to and investigating reports of bullying or retaliation;
- The definition of a range of disciplinary actions that may be taken against an aggressor found to be in violation of the bullying policy (these disciplinary actions are intended to balance the need for accountability with the need to teach appropriate behavior);
- Procedures for restoring a sense of safety for a target;
- Strategies for protecting from bullying or retaliation a person who reports bullying, provides information during an investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable information about an act of bullying;
- Procedures consistent with state and federal law for promptly notifying the parents or guardians of a target and an aggressor, including action to prevent further acts of bullying or retaliation;
- Procedures for immediate notification by the principal to local law enforcement when criminal charges may be pursued against an aggressor;
- A provision that a student who knowingly makes a false accusation of bullying or retaliation shall be subject to disciplinary action;
- A strategy for providing counseling or referral to appropriate services for perpetrators and targets and for appropriate family members of said students;
- A statement indicating that the plan will afford all students the same protection regardless of their status under the law.

A safe learning environment is one in which every student develops emotionally, academically, and physically in a caring and supportive atmosphere free of intimidation and abuse. Bullying of any type has no place in a school setting. The Billerica Public Schools endeavors to maintain a learning and working environment free of bullying and/or cyberbullying. The Billerica School Committee and all of the Billerica Public Schools shall not tolerate bullying and/or cyberbullying.

BULLYING DEFINED

<u>Bullying</u> - Massachusetts General Law, Ch. 71 Section 370 defines bullying as, the repeated use by one or more students of a written, verbal or electronic expression or a physical act or gesture or any combination thereof, directed at a victim that: (i) causes physical or emotional harm to the victim or damage to the victim's property; (ii) places the victim in reasonable

fear of harm to himself or of damage to his property; (iii) creates a hostile environment at school for the victim; (iv) infringes on the rights of the victim at school; or (v) materially and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school. For the purposes of this section, bullying shall include cyberbullying.

<u>cyberbullying</u> under the same law is defined as, "bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, which shall include, but shall not be limited to, any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data or intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic, photo electronic or photo optical system, including, but not limited to, electronic mail, internet communications, instant messages or facsimile communications. Cyberbullying shall also include (i) the creation of a web page or blog in which the creator assumes the identity of another person or (ii) the knowing impersonation of another person as the author of posted content or messages, if the creation or impersonation creates any of the conditions enumerated in clauses (i) to (v), inclusive, of the definition of bullying. Cyberbullying shall also include the distribution by electronic means of a communication to more than one person or the posting of material on an electronic medium that may be accessed by one or more persons, if the distribution or posting creates any of the conditions enumerated in clauses (i) to (v), inclusive, of the definition of bullying."

<u>Hostile Environment</u> is defined as a situation in which bullying causes the school environment to be permeated with intimidation, ridicule, or insult that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to alter the conditions of the student's education. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work or educational performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working/educational environment.

<u>Aggressor</u> is a student who engages in bullying, cyberbullying, or retaliation.

<u>Retaliation</u> is any form of intimidation, reprisal, or harassment directed against a student who reports bullying, provides information during an investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable information about bullying.

<u>staff</u> includes, but is not limited to, educators, administrators, counselors, school nurses, cafeteria workers, custodians, bus drivers, athletic coaches, advisors to extracurricular activities, support staff, or paraprofessionals.

<u>Target</u> is a student against whom bullying, cyberbullying, or retaliation has been perpetrated.

In accordance with Massachusetts General Law, Ch. 71 Section 370 "Bullying shall be prohibited: (i) on school grounds, property immediately adjacent to school grounds, at a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function or program whether on or off school grounds, at a school bus stop, on a school bus or other vehicle owned, leased or used by a school district or school, or through the use of technology or an electronic device owned, leased or used by a school district or school and (ii) at a location, activity, function or program that is not school-related, or through the use of technology or an electronic device that is not owned, leased or used by a school district or school, if the bullying creates a hostile environment at school for the victim, infringes on the rights of the victim at school or materially and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school. Nothing contained herein shall require schools to staff any non-school related activities, functions, or programs.

Retaliation against a person who reports bullying, provides information during an investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable information about bullying shall be prohibited."

- A. It is the policy of the Billerica Schools to maintain a learning and working environment that is free from bullying of any kind.
- B. It shall be a violation of this policy for any student in the Billerica Public Schools to bully any other student through conduct or communication of a bullying nature.
- C. Each administrator shall be responsible within his or her school or office for promoting an understanding of and assuring compliance with state and federal laws, and school committee policy and procedures governing bullying.
- D. Students who engage in bullying will be subject to a range of actions. Students may be recommended for remedial actions including but not limited to training, education, or counseling. Students may also be subject to discipline including, but not limited to reprimand, detention, suspension, expulsion or other sanctions as determined by the school administration.
- E. Retaliation in any form against any student who has filed a complaint relating to bullying will not be tolerated. No student will be subject to any form of coercion, intimidation, retaliation, or discrimination for filing a report of

bullying. The consequences for retaliation will be the same as for bullying. On the other hand, false accusations made in bad faith will not be tolerated.

COMPLAINT PROCEDURES: Anyone who has been bullied, as defined above, may bring their complaint to the attention of <u>any</u> school employee. Any student, or other person, who believes that the bullying of a student has occurred may inform any school employee. Complaints may be made orally or in writing, including notification that is web-based or text-based. If a staff member or volunteer is informed, she/he is required to report the complaint to the principal or her/his designee. Then, either a principal or her/his designee will investigate the claims of bullying or cyberbullying. Every effort will be made to insure confidentiality in any investigation. Where appropriate, efforts will also be made to resolve the issue informally by mutual agreement before invoking the more formal procedures as set forth below. Any student involved in the process, whether as complainant or as the person charged (i.e., the alleged aggressor) may be accompanied by an advisor throughout the process. Complaints of bullying or retaliation may be made anonymously; however no disciplinary action shall be taken against a student solely on the basis of an anonymous report.

FALSE ACCUSATIONS: Any student who knowingly makes a false accusation of bullying or retaliation will be subject to disciplinary action. Students may also be subject to discipline including, but not limited to reprimand, detention, suspension, or other sanctions as determined by the school administration. An educational component will be part of the actions taken.

RESPONSE/INVESTIGATION OF REPORTS OF BULLYING

Complaints Made by Students Involving Harassment or Bullying by a Student or Group of Students

Upon receiving a complaint, the principal or her/his designee (complaint investigator) will confer with the complainant to gain an understanding and statement of the alleged facts. If the complaint investigator determines that such facts, if true, would constitute bullying, as defined above, the complaint investigator will take appropriate steps to fully investigate and/or resolve the complaint. If it is felt that no bullying has occurred, documentation to that effect will be written on the Bullying Incident Reporting Form as no further action needed or unfounded.

Informal Procedure

Following an initial investigation, it may be possible to resolve a complaint through a voluntary conversation between a complaining party and the alleged aggressor which would be facilitated by the complaint official. If both the complaining party and the alleged aggressor feel that a resolution has been achieved, then the conversation may remain confidential and no further action need be taken. The results of an informal investigation shall be reported to the principal. Consistent with state and federal law (FERPA), parents or guardians of the students involved will be notified of the incident and whether or not a resolution had been reached. If the complaining party, the alleged aggressor or the complaint official chooses not to utilize the informal procedure, or feels that the informal procedure is inadequate or has been unsuccessful, she/he may proceed to the formal procedure. The formal procedure is available for all complaints.

Formal Procedure

Step 1

The complaint official shall fill out a Bullying Incident Complaint Form based on the written or verbal allegations of the complaining party. This Bullying Incident Complaint Form shall be kept in a centralized and secure location. The complaint form shall detail the facts and circumstances of the incident or pattern of behavior.

<u>Parent Notification</u>: If the school principal or designee determines that bullying or retaliation has occurred, the school principal or designee shall notify the parents or guardians of a perpetrator and notify the parents or guardians of the victim, and to the extent consistent with state and federal law, notify them of action taken to prevent any further act of bullying or retaliation. All specific disciplinary actions will remain confidential in accordance with the law.

Step 2

The investigation may consist of personal interviews with the complaining party, the alleged aggressor and any other individuals who may have knowledge of the alleged incident(s) or circumstances giving rise to the complaint. In determining whether alleged conduct constitutes a violation of this policy, the complaint official should consider the surrounding

circumstances, any relevant documents or electronic communications, the nature of the behavior, past incidents or past or continuing patterns of behavior, the relationships between the parties involved and the context in which the alleged incidents occurred. Whether a particular action or incident constitutes a violation of this policy requires a determination based on all the facts and surrounding circumstances.

In addition, school officials may take immediate steps, at their discretion, to protect the complaining party, alleged aggressor, and/or witnesses pending completion of an investigation of alleged bullying and may make any suitable referrals for assistance to appropriate persons or agencies.

<u>Safety</u>: The principal or designee will take steps to assess the need to restore a sense of safety to the alleged target and/or to protect the alleged target from possible further incidents. Responses to promote safety may include, but not be limited to, creating a personal safety plan; pre-determining seating arrangements for the target and/or the aggressor in the classroom, at lunch, or on the bus; identifying a staff member who will act as a "safe person" for the target; and altering the aggressor's schedule and access to the target. The principal or designee will take additional steps to promote safety during the course of and after the investigation, as necessary.

The principal or designee will implement appropriate strategies for protecting from bullying or retaliation a student who has reported bullying or retaliation, a student who has witnessed bullying or retaliation, a student who provides information during an investigation, or a student who has reliable information about a reported act of bullying or retaliation.

The investigation will be completed within fifteen (15) school days, whenever practicable, from the complaint or report. The principal shall complete a report, or the complaint official shall make a written report to the school principal upon completion of the investigation. The report shall include a determination as to whether the allegations have been substantiated as factual and whether or not they appear to be violations of the Billerica Public Schools' policy. Summary of Action Steps:

- The report/complaint is received by the principal or a complaint official;
- A determination of jurisdiction is made (on campus, off campus, off campus but with an impact or an potential impact on campus);
- The reporter of the alleged bullying is interviewed by the principal or complaint official;
- If the reporter is someone other than the alleged victim, the alleged victim is interviewed;
- · A determination is made regarding witnesses; those persons believed to be witnesses are interviewed;
- A determination is made regarding the information about the complaint which leads to the interview of the alleged aggressor;
- The plausibility and merit of the entire complaint is taken into consideration;
- Specific elements of the situation are determined; these elements may initiate disciplinary actions along with an educational component.

Sten 3

In the case of a complaint official, he or she shall report to the school principal or designee the findings of the investigation. Following the investigation, the principal shall take what action if any, is required. As soon as practicable, but no later than 5 school days from receiving the complaint official's findings, the school shall take appropriate action in all cases where the complaint official concludes that this policy has been violated. As stated earlier, students who engage in bullying will be subject to a range of action. Students and/or appropriate family members of the involved students may be recommended for counseling or referral to appropriate services including guidance, academic intervention and protection to students, both targets and perpetrators affected by bullying, as necessary.

Students may also be subject to discipline including, but not limited to reprimand, detention, suspension, expulsion or other sanctions as determined by the school administration. Action taken for violation of this policy shall be consistent with the requirements of state and federal law, including but not limited to the due process protections for students with disabilities.

Step 4

The principal or designee shall maintain the written report of the investigation and results in his/her office. The complaining party and the alleged aggressor shall be informed of the results of the investigation, including whether the allegations were found to be factual, whether there was a violation of the policy, and whether disciplinary action was or will be taken within 5 school days following the completion of the investigation.

Appeals

If either the complaining party or the individual against whom the complaint was made is dissatisfied with the outcome of the investigation, that person may request, in writing, a reopening of the investigation. The written request shall state the reasons for requesting a reopening and shall be delivered to the superintendent, Mr. Timothy Piwowar, Billerica Public Schools, 365 Boston Rd. Billerica, MA 01821 (978) 528-7908 within seven school days of receiving the results of the investigation. The superintendent shall decide whether or not to reopen the investigation and, within ten school days of receiving the request to reopen the investigation, shall provide written notification of the determination to reopen or not to reopen to the complaining party, and to the individual against whom the complaint was made. If the investigation is reopened, the superintendent shall require the repetition, as appropriate, of steps 2, 3, and 4 of the formal procedure. The timeline prescribed by step 3 will apply to any reopening under the appeal process.

Confidentiality

The Billerica Pubic School District recognizes that both the complaining party and the alleged aggressor have strong interests in maintaining the confidentiality of the allegation and related information. The privacy of the complaining party, the individual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses will be respected as much as possible, consistent with legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to comply with any discovery or disclosure obligations.

Notification of Local Law Enforcement

The Billerica Public Schools is committed to maintaining an educational environment free from all forms of bullying conduct. The Billerica Public Schools shall afford all students the same protection regardless of their status under the law. Referral to the Billerica Police Department may be made, where appropriate, when the principal or designee has a reasonable basis to believe that criminal charges may be pursued against the aggressor.

The principal, shall consistent with school policy and procedure, consult with the school resource officer, if any, and such other individuals the principal deems appropriate in such determination 603 CMR 49.06(1)(a). The principal shall notify law enforcement if bullying or retaliation (as provided in the bullying prevention and intervention plan) occurs on school grounds and involves a former student under the age of 21.

HAZING

The School Committee forbids hazing in any form. Should an alleged instance of hazing occur, the provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 269, Sections 17, 18 and 19 shall be adhered to. In addition the Superintendent of Schools and the School Committee chairperson shall immediately be notified of the circumstances of the complaint and the actions taken.

Any student found guilty of a charge of hazing shall be subject to the following disciplinary actions:

1st Offense: Suspension not to exceed five (5) school days. Such suspension may be in-house at the discretion of the principal.

2nd Offense: Suspension not to exceed ten (10) school days.

3rd Offense: Suspension for an indeterminate period necessary for exclusion.

Any employee found guilty of a charge of hazing shall be subject to the following disciplinary actions:

1st Offense: Suspension without pay not to exceed five (5) school days.

2nd Offense: Suspension for a thirty (30) school-day period and recommendation to the School Committee relative to dismissal.

Any organization found guilty of a charge of hazing shall lose the privilege of using school facilities for a period of time as determined by the Superintendent.

CH. 269, S. 17. CRIME OF HAZING; DEFINITION; PENALTY

Whoever is a principal organizer or participant in the crime of hazing, as defined herein, shall be punished by a fine of not more than three thousand dollars or by imprisonment in a house of correction for not more than one year, or both such fine and imprisonment.

The term "hazing" as used in this section and in <u>sections eighteen</u> and <u>nineteen</u>, shall mean any conduct or method of initiation into any student organization, whether on public or private property, which willfully or recklessly endangers the physical or mental health of any student or other person. Such conduct shall include whipping, beating, branding, forced calisthenics, exposure to the weather, forced consumption of any food, liquor, beverage, drug or other substance, or any other brutal treatment or forced physical activity which is likely to adversely affect the physical health or safety of any such student or other person, or which subjects such student or other person to extreme mental stress, including extended deprivation of sleep or rest or extended isolation.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this section to the contrary, consent shall not be available as a defense to any prosecution under this action.

CH. 269, S. 18. DUTY TO REPORT HAZING

Whoever knows that another person is the victim of hazing as defined in <u>section seventeen</u> and is at the scene of such crime shall, to the extent that such person can do so without danger or peril to himself or others, report such crime to an appropriate law enforcement official as soon as reasonably practicable. Whoever fails to report such crime shall be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars.

HEALTH SERVICES

MEDICATION POLICY

The Billerica Public Schools recognize that parents/guardians have the primary responsibility for the health of their children. Although the Department strongly recommends that medication be given in the home, it realizes that the health of some children requires that they receive medication while in school. Only a **licensed prescriber** (physician, nurse practitioner, and physician assistant) is legally authorized to prescribe medication. Parents should confer with the child's physician to arrange medication time intervals to avoid school hours whenever possible. When medication <u>absolutely</u> must be given during school hours, the following criteria must be met. **All requests are to be referred to the school nurse.**

Parents must provide all of the following:

A. Prescription Medication

- 1. Written directive from the prescriber, including diagnosis, medication, dosage, side effects, frequency of administration
- 2. Parental signature authorizing the nurse to administer the medication.
- 3. Medication in a container with the prescription labeled by the pharmacist with the student's name, date, medication, dosage and physician's name. (Pharmacists will provide additional containers for school use.)
- 4. Medication should be delivered to the school by a parent or responsible adult
- 5. Notification of changes or discontinuation
- 6. Students carrying their own inhalers, their own enzyme supplements, their own glucose monitoring systems and/or insulin delivery systems and/or Epi-pens will demonstrate to the nurse the ability to self administer and

sign a self administration form along with the parent and the nurse. An extra inhaler, supply of enzyme supplements, supply of insulin or Epi-pen should be kept in the nurses' office.

B. Over the Counter Medication in School

- 1. May be administered in school only if medication is provided in an original package labeled with the child's name and dosage required via physician order and written parental consent. This will be under the school nurses' review
- 2. Tylenol (acetaminophen) (in elementary school this is only for a temperature over 1000 for one dose only), antibiotic ointment, antiseptic rinse, oral pain reliever, lip ointment, caladryl, first aid spray/ointment, petroleum jelly, and contact lens cleaner may be given in the preschool and elementary setting with parental permission. In addition to these, the middle schools may give an antacid with parental permission. Additionally, at the high school ibuprofen may be given with parental permission. Over the counter medication will be given per standing orders of the school physician and will be under the school nurses' review.

C. Field Trip Medication

- 1. For overnight field trips only Acetaminophen may be self administered per the school physician's standing order with parental permission.
- 2. All other medication for overnight trips will need a doctor's order and parental permission. Medication will be held by the teacher or chaperone. If the medication is on file at the nurse' office that will suffice.
- 3. Day field trips prescriptive medications that are given in the nurses offices can be delegated if no assessment is needed, otherwise, nursing services are required if parents or a chaperone designated by a parent is unable to attend. If a student is able to self administer a medication and the signed document is in the possession of the school nurse, the student may self administer their medication on the field trip.

C. Long-term medication must be renewed (as above) at the beginning of each school year.

FIELD TRIP MEDICAL PROCEDURES

Billerica Public Schools has been registered with the Massachusetts Department of Public Health for the limited purpose of permitting the delegation of prescription medication to unlicensed school personnel on **Field trips and short term special school events.**

ALL schools will be under the same parameters.

- 1. Every effort will be made to have the parent of a student requiring medication to attend the field trip.
- 2. If possible, scheduled medications would not be given at home in the morning. The medication normally given to the student in the morning would be given by the nurse prior to embarkation of field trip.
- 3. Students requiring scheduled medication on field trips would need an extra prescription bottle with the medication to be dispensed. (The state is working on a plan to allow envelopes to be used but at the present time, prescriptive bottles should be used.) These are provided free of charge from the pharmacy. The nurse would put the medication in a bottle and give it to the trained unlicensed staff member responsible for the medication.
- 4. Unlicensed staff members are not permitted to assess a student. PRN medications must be self-administered by the student. Inhalers fall into this category. The parent and physician need to sign a permission slip stating that the student will self-administer the medication. The medication will be carried by the staff member.
- 5. Epi-Pen administration is not categorized as delegation. It is a special registration to allow unlicensed staff to administer epinephrine in a life-threatening emergency. Unlicensed staff will be trained in administration practices.
- 6. Staff administering medication will be trained by the school nurse.
- 7. Field trip forms will be submitted by principals to the Director of Nurses three weeks before a field trip in order to provide adequate coverage for students with medical needs¹.

¹ This includes school-to-school field trips within the district.

MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH IMMUNIZATION PROGRAM

Minimum Immunization Requirements for School Entry in 2013 - 2014 School Year* Billerica Public Schools

	Child Care/ Preschool	Kindergarten	Grades 1-6	Grades 7-12
Hepatitis B	3 doses	3 doses	3 doses	3 doses
DtaP/DTP/ DT/Td	≥4 doses DTaP/DTP	5 doses DtaP/DTP	≥4 doses DtaP/DTP or ≥ 3 doses Td	4 doses DtaP/DTP or \geq 3 doses Td; plus 1 Tdap (booster) see phase in schedule)
Polio	≥ 3 doses	4 doses	≥3 doses	≥ 3 doses
Hib	3 or 4 doses	NA	NA	NA
MMR	1 dose	2 doses	2 doses MMR Grades 1-2 & Grades 3-6 otherwise 2 doses of measles, 1 mumps, 1 rubella	MMR 2 doses Grades 7-9 other wise 2 doses measles, 1 mumps, 1 rubella
Varicella	1 dose	2 doses	2 doses Grades 1-2 and Grades 3-6 Otherwise 1 dose	Grades 7-9 – 2 doses Grades 10 -12 – 1 dose

Phase in Schedule

	2013	2014	2015	2015	2017
2 MMR	K-2 and 7-9	K-3 and 7-10	K-4 and 7-11	K-5 and 7-112	K-12
And					
2 Varicella					
Tdap	Grades K-2	Grades k-3	Grades K-4	Grades K-5	Grades K-12
	Grades 7-9	Grades 7-10	Grades 7-11	Grades 7-12	

Children must present evidence of having been previously screened for Lead Poisoning as a condition of entry into Pre-School and Kindergarten

THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH Isolation and Quarantine Requirements

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Public Health mandate that any student or staff member, who is not appropriately immunized or is without laboratory evidence of immunity or a reliable history of chickenpox be excluded from school from the 10th through the 21st days after their last exposure.\

INTERROGATIONS AND STUDENT LOCKER/DESK SEARCHES

In order to maintain a safe environment in its schools, Billerica Public Schools reserves the right to search all school property including, but not limited to lockers assigned to students, for contraband or controlled substances in accordance with state and federal laws. Searches of school property, including lockers, may be conducted on a periodic basis and may

include the use of trained K-9 units whose specific mission is drug detection. The police department designee and the appropriate building administrator and Superintendent of Schools will coordinate these searches in an effort to minimize disruption and maximize the security of the search. Students and their personal belongings may be searched by school officials if there are reasonable grounds to believe the student is in possession of contraband or illegal substances. Searches of students and their personal effects, such as coat and pockets, purses, knapsacks, and/or other bags, will be reasonable at their inception and in their scope. Students who drive automobiles to school and park on school property are advised that by accepting the use of school drives and parking lots, they consent to a search of the vehicle consistent with state and federal laws.

LOST OR DAMAGED BOOKS

You are expected to replace any text or library book your child loses or damages. Please reinforce at home the proper care of books.

PARENT/TEACHER COMMUNICATIONS

- 1. Elementary and middle school report cards are sent home three (3) times a year and two (2) times per year for kindergarten. High school report cards are sent home four (4) times a year. Progress reports may be sent home between these marking periods to alert you to a problem area.
- 2. If you would like to talk to a teacher at any time during the year, write a note, email, or call the school ahead of time in order to request a conference; an appointment will then be scheduled for you.
- 3. Parent/teacher conferences will be regularly scheduled for each school year.
- 4. We need your help and cooperation in order to provide quality, uninterrupted teaching time for all students. It is also necessary that we insure the safety of all present in the building during the school day. Please read the following guidelines:
 - a. Sign-in at the office before going anywhere in the building. Under NO circumstances are you to go anywhere without a pass or badge to identify you to all students and staff that you are an approved visitor.
 - b. You should not expect to see a teacher without a scheduled appointment. If you arrive without an appointment, the classroom teacher will be contacted to determine if it is convenient for the teacher to see you, or if another time needs to be scheduled. Please do NOT approach staff in the school yard, hallways, etc. expecting to have a discussion. Should you approach a teacher, they are instructed to refer you to the office to have you follow the above directions.
 - c. Leave items or messages for students in the office. The student will be called down to pick them up.
 - d. It is expected that all meetings and written communications be polite and respectful. If a conversation/meeting deteriorates and becomes loud, abusive or profane, the staff has been instructed to end the conversation or meeting, and to accompany or refer the person to the office. The office may, also, be called by a staff member if help is needed. An appointment for a later date with a third party present will be made if the matter that caused the disagreement is not resolved.
 - e. Subsequent meeting(s) will end and police may be called if the conversation becomes loud, abusive or profane.
 - 1. A letter of warning will be sent to the offending person.
 - 2. A complaint may be filed with the police if the incident is repeated.
 - 3. The police may be called in the event of any physical aggression or threats, verbal or written.

4. A stay away order or no trespass order may be requested.

We are confident that we can count on all who visit our school to cooperate and make sure that we maintain a safe and respectful environment for everyone.

PROBLEM-SOLVING STRATEGY

In the event that there are problems concerning a student's education, the following procedural steps should be taken:

- 1. Contact the teacher
- 2. Contact the Principal and/or Supervisor
- 3. Contact the Superintendent of Schools
- 4. Contact the School Committee

PROMOTION AND RETENTION OF STUDENTS

The administration and teaching staff shall strive to create plans of instruction and instructional organization to provide maximum opportunity for each student to progress through school according to his/her own needs and abilities <u>without</u> the stigma of failure or retention.

In general, students shall be promoted annually. However, exceptions to this general policy may be made when it becomes evident that a student should proceed more slowly.

Retention shall <u>not</u> be used until all other possibilities have been exhausted, including extra help, remedial work, and summer school opportunity.

The promotional standard in the middle school allows only one non-passing final grade in the major subjects of Math, Science, English and Social Studies in grades six and seven. However, a second failing grade in the same failed subject as grade six would cause retention in grade seven. In order to be promoted from eighth grade, students must pass all four major subjects (effective 2001-02 school year). The number of passing grades in all other subjects necessary for promotion is left to the Principal's discretion. The Principal retains the final discretionary power to promote or retain any student when extenuation circumstances prevail.

In all cases of retention, parents must be informed of such possibility well in advance (usually by the third reporting period) and a conference with them sought. In all instances, the advice and help of the guidance and other special school personnel shall be utilized by teachers.

Although teachers may recommend retention, all retentions (as well as promotions) shall be assigned by the school principals. Teachers in recommending retentions, and Principals in assigning them, shall give the reasons why they feel the student should repeat the academic year.

The Principal shall take particular care in assigning more than one retention during a child's elementary school life, and may, when found desirable, provide for promotion on the basis of social and personal needs, rather than academic achievement. The Superintendent must approve a second retention assigned any student.

PUBLICITY

Students from time to time may participate in school activities which are covered by the news media including newspapers, TV, cable TV, and Web sites. If a student's parent/guardian does not wish to have such information released to the news media, used on the district website or printed in school programs, he/she must inform the Principal in writing (please see *Receipt Page* at the beginning of this *Handbook*). This is in compliance with the student's record release regulations and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974.

SCHOOL VISITS

Parents and other school visitors must report to the Principal's Office. No one is permitted beyond the Principal's Office without permission.

As a safety precaution for all schools, visitors are to:

- 1. Sign-in at the Principal's Office
- 2. Receive an ID badge
- 3. Sign-out and return badge

STAYING AFTER SCHOOL

If a student plans to stay after school for additional instruction with a teacher, intramurals, or special programs, he/she will be expected to report immediately after school. Students should be certain to tell their parents that they will be arriving home later than usual. Parents are responsible for arrangements of transportation to and from extracurricular activities.

SECTION 504/ADA NOTICE

The Billerica Public School District does not discriminate on the basis of disability with regards to admission, access to services, treatment, or employment in its programs or activities.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 prohibits discrimination against individuals with disabilities in any program receiving federal financial assistance. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) applies to employers who have over 14 employees regardless of federal financial assistance. Under both Acts, the definition of an "individual with a disability" is a person who:

- 1. has a mental or physical impairment
- 2. which substantially limits
- 3. one or more major life activity

The District will evaluate, identify, and provide free appropriate education to all students who are individuals with disabilities under Section 504 or the ADA. Parents of these students are entitled to procedural safeguards, including individual notice and an impartial hearing.

The District will provide reasonable accommodation to each employee and qualified employment applicant covered by Section 504 or the ADA unless it would impose an undue hardship on the operation of the program. Each of the programs of the District will be readily accessible to individuals with disabilities when viewed in its entirety.

The District will furnish auxiliary aids and services to students, employees, parents, and members of the public who have disabilities to the extent necessary for communications with other persons, unless it will result in an undue burden on the District, or a fundamental alteration in the program.

For further information concerning disability procedures or discrimination complaints please contact the Section 504/ADA Coordinators as follows:

Ditson Elementary School Mrs. Eileen Roake 39 Cook Street 978-528-8510

Dutile Elementary School	Ms. Christine Balzotti	10 Biagiotti Way	978-528-8530
Hajjar Elementary School	Ms. Elizabeth Devine	59 Rogers Street	978-528-8550
Kennedy Elementary School	Mr. David Marble	20 Kimbrough Road	978-528-8570
Parker Elementary School	Mr. Russell Marino	52 River Street	978-528-8610
Vining Elementary School	Ms. Victoria Hatem	121 Lexington Road	978-528-8630
Locke Middle School	Mr. Anthony Garas	110 Allen Road	978-528-8650
Marshall Middle School	Mr. Michael Rossi	15 Floyd Street	978-528-8670
Billerica Memorial High School	Mr. Thomas Murphy	35 River Street	978-528-8712
District-Wide Coordinator	Mr. Steven Bottari	35 River Street	978-528-8760

PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS UNDER SECTION 504 AND THE ADA

In accordance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Billerica Public School District provides you, as the parent or guardian, with the following procedural safeguards in relation to your child:

- 1. You have a right to receive a copy of this notice when the district takes any action regarding the identification, evaluation, and placement of a student pursuant to Section 504.
- 2. To examine all relevant records relating to decisions regarding your child's identification, evaluation, and educational placement;
- 3. To request an impartial due process hearing related to decisions or actions regarding your child's identification, evaluation, or educational placement with participation by you and representation by counsel (at private expense). In order to request an impartial hearing, please contact the district's Section 504 Coordinator listed below; and
- 4. To appeal the decision of the impartial hearing officer to a court of competent jurisdiction.

SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAMS

The Billerica Public School provides services to students with disabilities who are eligible for special education and/or related services. Students receiving special education and/or related services must go through a Team evaluation process and must have an individualized education program (IEP). A student can be referred for a special education evaluation by a member of the school staff, a parent, or the student him/herself.

The procedures for recognizing, referring, and programming special needs cases are developed by the Billerica Special Education Department under the supervision of the Superintendent and in cooperation with other administrators and teachers. State (Chapter 71B of 603 CMR 28.00) and Federal (Individual with Disabilities Education Act, or "IDEA") regulations will provide the basis of these procedures. In all cases, parents of students with special needs will be included in the educational planning for their child and will be partners in the programming process.

ACCESS TO SPECIAL EDUCATION

The major purpose of special education is to ensure access and meaningful progress in the least restrictive environment (LRE). This means that the Billerica Public Schools has a responsibility to ensure that every effort is made to provide special education services within the general education environment. Special education through Billerica Public Schools offers a continuum of services and programs for eligible students in order to provide access to an education within the least restrictive environment. For most students, the services will be provided within the general education setting, while others

may receive a combination of services in and outside of the general education classroom. There are some students that may require more intensive services and need special education services outside of the general education classroom.

At any time, parents and/or any person in a care giving capacity in relation to the student may make a referral for a special education evaluation. Referrals for a special education evaluation should be sent to the Team Chairperson assigned to the school. The list of Team Chairperson school assignments and contact information can be found on the Billerica Special Education website. In order to determine eligibility for special education the following steps are mandated:

- Written consent from parent/guardian using the state mandated form
- A comprehensive evaluation focused on the areas of suspected disability
- A determination of an educational disability
- Lack of effective progress
- The lack of progress needs to be a result of the disability
- The need for specialized instruction and or related services
- An accepted Individualized Education Program (IEP) from the parent/guardian

All decisions for eligibility and special education programming are made through the team process.

Behavioral Expectations – Special Education

All students are expected to meet the requirements for behavior as prescribed in this handbook. State and Federal Laws require additional provisions be made for students who have been found eligible through a special education evaluation for special education services and programming and whose program is described in an Individual Education Program (IEP). State and Federal special education laws prescribe additional requirements regarding the discipline of a student with special needs.

- When it is known that a student with special needs is likely to be excluded from his/her program for more than 10 cumulative days (or less than 10 if there is a pattern), in a school year, the Team must convene to determine whether the student's misconduct that leads to the change in placement is a manifestation of the student's disability.
 - 1. Of the misconduct was a manifestation, the school may conduct or review a functional behavior assessment and implement a behavior intervention plan. If such an assessment was already conducted, the behavior intervention plan will be reviewed and modified as necessary. Additionally, if the behavior was a manifestation, the student will return to the placement from which he/she was removed unless the school and parent agree otherwise or special circumstances exist.
 - 2. If the behavior was not a manifestation, the school may apply the relevant disciplinary procedures to the extent they would be applied to a student not eligible for special education, except that a student eligible for special education, who is removed from his/her current placement, is entitled to continue receiving educational services to enable the student to continue to participate in the general education curriculum, although in another setting, and to make progress toward meeting the goals set out in the student's IEP.
- In special circumstances, the school may remove students to an interim alternative educational setting for manifestation of the student's disability. These special circumstances are:
 - 1. A student carries or possesses a weapon to or at school, on school premises, or to or at a school function under jurisdiction of a State or local educational agency.
 - A student knowingly possesses or used illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance, while at school, on school premises, or at a school function under the jurisdiction of a State or local educational agency.

3. A student has inflicted serious bodily injury upon another person while at school, on school premises, or at a school function under the jurisdiction of a State or local educational agency.

Additional information concerning special education including the right to receive an evaluation, the procedural protections afforded to parents and students, a more detailed description of the special education rules relating to suspension and expulsion, and access to special education records may be obtained from the Director of Special Education.

SPECIAL EDUCATION PARENT ADVISORY COUNCIL

The Billerica Special Education Parent Advisory Council (PAC) is a district-wide parent advisory council offering membership to all parents of special needs students and other interested parties. The Council's purpose is to work toward the support, respect, understanding and appropriate education for all children in Billerica. The Parent Advisory Council meets monthly during the school year. Please check your school bulletin board and/or the Billerica Parent Advisory Council for Special Education website at www.bpacsp.org for additional information.

STUDENT CONDUCT

Citizenship in a democracy requires respect for the rights of others. The students in the schools of the system shall be expected to conduct themselves in such a way that the rights and privileges of others are not violated. The School Committee requires students to respect constituted authority and to conform to school rules and regulations, and to those provisions of law which apply to the conduct of juveniles or minors.

Teachers and other members of the school staff are to emphasize and set before children high standards of personal courtesy, decency, morality, clean language, honesty, and wholesome relationships with others, along with respect for real and personal property, and pride in one's work and achievement within the limits of an individual ability.

Every student who gives evidence of a sincere desire to remain in school, to be diligent in studies, and to profit by the educational experience provided, will be given every opportunity to do so.

EXPULSION/SUSPENSION

EDUCATION REFORM ACT OF 1993

Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, all student handbooks shall contain the following provisions:

- 1. Any student who is found on school premises or at school-sponsored or school-related events, including athletic games, in possession of a dangerous weapon, including, but not limited to, a gun or a knife; or a controlled substance as defined in Chapter 94C., including, but not limited to marijuana, cocaine, and heroin may be subject to expulsion from the school or school district by the Principal.
- 2. Any student who assaults a principal, assistant principal, teacher, teacher's aide or other educational staff on school premises or a school-sponsored or school-related event, including athletic games, may be subject to expulsion from the school or school district by the Principal.
- 3. Any student who is charged with a violation of either paragraph (a) or (b) shall be notified in writing of an opportunity for a hearing; provided, however, that the student may have representation, along with the opportunity to present evidence and witnesses at said hearing before the Principal.
- 4. After said hearing, a principal may, in his/her discretion, decide to suspend rather than expel a student who has been determined by the principal to have violated either paragraph (a) or (b).

- 5. Any student who has been expelled from a school district pursuant to these provisions shall have the right to appeal to the Superintendent. The expelled student shall have ten (10) days from the date of the expulsion in which to notify the Superintendent of his appeal. The student has the right to counsel at a hearing before the Superintendent. The subject matter of the appeal shall not be limited solely to a factual determination of whether the student has violated any provisions of this service.
- 6. When a student is expelled under the provisions of this section and applies for admission to another school for acceptance, the Superintendent of the sending school shall notify the Superintendent of the receiving school of the reasons for the pupil's expulsion.

Massachusetts law provides for a mandatory minimum sentence of two (2) years imprisonment and a fine of not more than \$10,000 for anyone convicted of selling controlled substances within 1000 feet of school property.

In addition, any student who has been involved in the sale, use, distribution of drugs or has committed an assault of any type on another student, staff member or administrator, or has been involved in a weapons violation will be subject to exclusion from participation in school activities or events. The statute does not provide an appeal to the School Committee.

Reference - Chapter 71, Section 37H.

In addition, all high school and middle school student handbooks shall contain the following provisions as well:

(1) Upon the issuance of a criminal complaint charging a student with a felony or upon the issuance of a felony delinquency complaint against a student, the principal or headmaster of a school in which the student is enrolled may suspend such student for a period of time determined appropriate by said principal or headmaster if said principal or headmaster determines that the student's continued presence in school would have a substantial detrimental effect on the general welfare of the school. The student shall receive written notification of the charges and the reasons for such suspension prior to such suspension taking effect. The student shall also receive written notification of his right to appeal and the process for appealing such suspension; provided, however, that such suspension shall remain in effect prior to any appeal hearing conducted by the superintendent.

The student shall have the right to appeal the suspension to the superintendent. The student shall notify the superintendent in writing of his request for an appeal no later than five calendar days following the effective date of the suspension. The superintendent shall hold a hearing with the student and the student's parent or guardian within three calendar days of the student's request for an appeal. At the hearing, the student shall have the right to present oral and written testimony on his behalf, and shall have the right to counsel. The superintendent shall have the authority to overturn or alter the decision of the principal or headmaster, including recommending an alternate educational program for the student. The superintendent shall render a decision on the appeal within five calendar days of the hearing. Such decision shall be the final decision of the city, town or regional school district with regard to the suspension.

(2) Upon a student being convicted of a felony or upon an adjudication or admission in court of guilt with respect to such a felony or felony delinquency, the principal or headmaster of a school in which the student is enrolled may expel said student if such principal or headmaster determines that the student's continued presence in school would have a substantial detrimental effect on the general welfare of the school. The student shall receive written notification of the charges and reasons for such expulsion prior to such expulsion taking effect. The student shall also receive written notification of his right to appeal and the process for appealing such expulsion; provided, however, that the expulsion shall remain in effect prior to any appeal hearing conducted by the superintendent.

The student shall have the right to appeal the expulsion to the superintendent. The student shall notify the superintendent, in writing, of his request for an appeal no later than five calendar days following the effective date of the expulsion. The superintendent shall hold a hearing with the student and the student's parent or guardian within three calendar days of the expulsion. At the hearing, the student shall have the right to present oral and written testimony on his behalf, and shall have the right to counsel. The superintendent shall have the authority to overturn or alter the decision of the principal or

headmaster, including recommending an alternate educational program for the student. The superintendent shall render a decision on the appeal within five calendar days of the hearing. Such decision shall be the final decision of the city, town or regional school district with regard to the expulsion.

Upon expulsion of such student, no school or school district shall be required to provide educational services to such student.

Reference - Chapter 71, Section 37H½

PRINCIPAL'S AUTHORITY

Chapter 71, Section 37H and Chapter 71, Section 37H½ give principals authority to expel a student who is found on school premises or at school-sponsored or school-related events, including athletic games, in possession of a dangerous weapon or a controlled substance, a student who assaults school personnel on school premises or at school-sponsored or school-related events, including athletic games or who is convicted of a felony. This authority is limited by Federal Special Education Law.

Reference - Chapter 71, Section 37H3/4

- (a) This section shall govern the suspension and expulsion of students enrolled in a public school in the commonwealth who are not charged with a violation of subsections (a) or (b) of section 37H or with a felony under section 37H1/2.
- (b) Any principal, headmaster, superintendent or other person acting as a decision-maker at a student meeting or hearing, when deciding the consequences for the student, shall exercise discretion; consider ways to re-engage the student in the learning process; and avoid using expulsion as a consequence until other remedies and consequences have been employed.
- (c) For any suspension or expulsion under this section, the principal or headmaster of a school in which the student is enrolled, or a designee, shall provide, to the student and to the parent or guardian of the student, notice of the charges and the reason for the suspension or expulsion in English and in the primary language spoken in the home of the student. The student shall receive the written notification and shall have the opportunity to meet with the principal or headmaster, or a designee, to discuss the charges and reasons for the suspension or expulsion prior to the suspension or expulsion taking effect. The principal or headmaster, or a designee, shall ensure that the parent or guardian of the student is included in the meeting, provided that such meeting may take place without the parent or guardian only if the principal or headmaster, or a designee, can document reasonable efforts to include the parent or guardian in that meeting. The department shall promulgate rules and regulations that address a principal's duties under this subsection and procedures for including parents in student exclusion meetings, hearings or interviews under this subsection.
- (d) If a decision is made to suspend or expel the student after the meeting, the principal or headmaster, or a designee, shall update the notification for the suspension or expulsion to reflect the meeting with the student. If a student has been suspended or expelled for more than 10 school days for a single infraction or for more than 10 school days cumulatively for multiple infractions in any school year, the student and the parent or guardian of the student shall also receive, at the time of the suspension or expulsion decision, written notification of a right to appeal and the process for appealing the suspension or expulsion in English and in the primary language spoken in the home of the student; provided, however, that the suspension or expulsion shall remain in effect prior to any appeal hearing. The principal or headmaster or a designee shall notify the superintendent in writing, including, but not limited to, by electronic means, of any out-of-school suspension imposed on a student enrolled in kindergarten through grade 3 prior to such suspension taking effect. That notification shall describe the student's alleged misconduct and the reasons for suspending the student out-of-school. For the purposes of this section, the term "out-of-school suspension" shall mean a disciplinary action imposed by school officials to remove a student from participation in school activities for 1 day or more.
- (e) A student who has been suspended or expelled from school for more than 10 school days for a single infraction or for more than 10 school days cumulatively for multiple infractions in any school year shall have the right to appeal the suspension or expulsion to the superintendent. The student or a parent or guardian of the student shall notify the

superintendent in writing of a request for an appeal not later than 5 calendar days following the effective date of the suspension or expulsion; provided, that a student and a parent or guardian of the student may request, and if so requested, shall be granted an extension of up to 7 calendar days. The superintendent or a designee shall hold a hearing with the student and the parent or guardian of the student within 3 school days of the student's request for an appeal; provided that a student or a parent or guardian of the student may request and, if so requested, shall be granted an extension of up to 7 calendar days; provided further, that the superintendent, or a designee, may proceed with a hearing without a parent or guardian of the student if the superintendent, or a designee, makes a good faith effort to include the parent or guardian. At the hearing, the student shall have the right to present oral and written testimony, cross-examine witnesses and shall have the right to counsel. The superintendent shall render a decision on the appeal in writing within 5 calendar days of the hearing. That decision shall be the final decision of the school district with regard to the suspension or expulsion.

(f) No student shall be suspended or expelled from a school or school district for a time period that exceeds 90 school days, beginning the first day the student is removed from an assigned school building.

Behavioral Expectations – Special Education

All students are expected to meet the requirements for behavior as prescribed in this handbook. State and Federal Laws require additional provisions be made for students who have been found eligible through a special education evaluation for special education services and programming and whose program is described in an Individual Education Program (IEP). State and Federal special education laws prescribe additional requirements regarding the discipline of a student with special needs.

- When it is known that a student with special needs is likely to be excluded from his/her program for more than 10 cumulative days (or less than 10 if there is a pattern), in a school year, the Team must convene to determine whether the student's misconduct that leads to the change in placement is a manifestation of the student's disability.
 - 1. Of the misconduct was a manifestation, the school may conduct or review a functional behavior assessment and implement a behavior intervention plan. If such an assessment was already conducted, the behavior intervention plan will be reviewed and modified as necessary. Additionally, if the behavior was a manifestation, the student will return to the placement from which he/she was removed unless the school and parent agree otherwise or special circumstances exist.
 - 2. If the behavior was not a manifestation, the school may apply the relevant disciplinary procedures to the extent they would be applied to a student not eligible for special education, except that a student eligible for special education, who is removed from his/her current placement, is entitled to continue receiving educational services to enable the student to continue to participate in the general education curriculum, although in another setting, and to make progress toward meeting the goals set out in the student's IEP.
- In special circumstances, the school may remove students to an interim alternative educational setting for manifestation of the student's disability. These special circumstances are:
 - 1. A student carries or possesses a weapon to or at school, on school premises, or to or at a school function under jurisdiction of a State or local educational agency.
 - 2. A student knowingly possesses or used illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance, while at school, on school premises, or at a school function under the jurisdiction of a State or local educational agency.
 - 3. A student has inflicted serious bodily injury upon another person while at school, on school premises, or at a school function under the jurisdiction of a State or local educational agency.

Additional information concerning special education including the right to receive an evaluation, the procedural protections afforded to parents and students, a more detailed description of the special education rules relating to suspension and

expulsion, and access to special education records may be obtained from the Director of Special Education.

Students on 504 Plans

Section 504 on the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 is a federal statute which prohibits a qualified individual with a disability from being excluded from the participation in, denied the benefits of, or subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance because of his/her disability. 29 U.S.C. § 794 and its implementing regulations, 34 C.F.R. 104 *et seq.* School personnel may not suspend a student on a 504 plan for more than ten (10) school days without first conducting a manifestation determination.

ALCOHOL USE BY STUDENTS

The use, service, possession, or consumption of any alcoholic beverage at any school function is prohibited, whether the function takes place on or away from school property. Students and/or their guests who violate this policy shall be subject to a penalty of being barred from any future school-sponsored activities, as well as, being excluded from the function in progress. Students and/or their guests who violate this policy shall be subject to penalties spelled out in the student handbook and by State and Federal law.

DRUG ABUSE POLICY

The School Committee does not tolerate use, service, possession, or consumption of any drugs at any school or at any school function whether the function takes place on or away from school property. Students and/or their guests who violate this policy shall be subject to penalties spelled out in the student handbook and by State and Federal law.

NOTE: For pertinent information, refer to the appropriate student handbook, and M.G.L. Chapter 71, Section 37H.

SMOKING/USE OF SMOKELESS TOBACCO PRODUCTS

The Billerica School Committee has created a Smoke Free Environment for all Billerica Schools; therefore, the use of tobacco products, is prohibited at all times by students, staff, and visitors in all school buildings and grounds and at all school-sponsored activities.

M.G.L. Ch.71, Section 2A and Section 37H

UNAUTHORIZED WEAPONS AND OTHER DANGEROUS ITEMS

In addition to the law stated below, students should not bring toy weapons to school premises, or school buses. Toy weapons include items such as: mock guns, knives, water pistols, laser pointers, or any other item suspected to be a threat to the safety and security of others or interfere with the educational environment.

Chapter 269, Section 10
Prohibition against Firearms in Schools

(j) Whoever, not being a law enforcement officer, and notwithstanding any license obtained by him under the provisions of chapter one hundred and forty, carries on his person a firearm as hereinafter defined, loaded or unloaded or other dangerous weapon in any building or on the grounds of any elementary or secondary school, college or university without the written authorization of the board or officer in charge of such elementary or secondary school, college or university shall be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars or by imprisonment for not more than one year, or both.

For the purpose of this paragraph, firearms shall mean any pistol, revolver, rifle or smoothbore arm from which a shot, bullet or pellet can be discharged by whatever means.

Any officer in charge of an elementary or secondary school, college or university or any faculty member or administrative officer of an elementary or secondary school, college or university failing to report violations of this paragraph shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and published by a fine of not more than five hundred dollars. *Amended by St.1987, c.150, s.2; St.1989, c.648*.

Students and/or their guests who violate this policy shall be subject to penalties spelled out in the student handbook and by State and Federal law.

NOTE: For pertinent information, refer to the appropriate student handbook, and M.G.L. Chapter 71, Section 37H.

SCHOOL BUS DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES

The bus driver is responsible, among other activities, for the supervision of pupil bus behavior. The Principal must assure safe, prompt loading, and unloading of buses. In addition, the Principal must promptly and impartially cooperate with bus drivers and other personnel in solving disciplinary problems.

If a **minor** incident occurs on the bus, the driver should first speak to the pupil involved, warning the pupil that a repeated offense would be reported to the Principal, using the bus conduct form.

In most instances, a first minor offense reported by a driver in writing will result in a written notification to the home that the pupil has been warned. Parent/guardian must sign acknowledgment form and return it to the school on the next school day.

A **second minor offense** reported will result in the pupil being placed on behavioral probation, and written notice from the Principal indicating what behavioral modification must be completed by the student. Behavioral modification shall be determined by the Principal. Examples: detention, in-house suspension, report writing, loss of recess, minor cleaning of bus, etc.

A **third minor offense** reported generally will result in a (3) three-day suspension from bus privileges. Thereafter, any single written infraction will result in a (5) five-day loss of bus privileges.

If the **first offense constitutes a major hazard**, no warning need be given, and the Principal may suspend a pupil from the bus up to five days and shall notify the parents, the bus driver, and the Superintendent's office. Any infraction reported thereafter will result in the loss of bus riding privileges.

MINOR OFFENSE = excessive mischief, eating-drinking-littering, being rude-discourteous-annoying, inappropriate language, violating safety procedures, minor bus destruction

MAJOR OFFENSE = fighting, insubordination, use of smokeless tobacco, smoking, use of or selling of alcohol, any action or deed that the authorities shall deem a hazard to students' health or safety.

OFFENSES THAT MAY RESULT IN EXPULSION FROM SCHOOL =

possession of a dangerous weapon and a controlled substance (drugs) as defined in M.G.L. Ch. 94C, and assault of a staff member. For pertinent information, refer to M.G.L. Chapter 71, Section 37H.

The above-mentioned disciplinary procedures may be waived or increased as deemed necessary by the Superintendent of Schools acting in the best interest of the Town of Billerica.

STUDENT RECORDS

State law provides that the school must furnish any student or former student with a transcript of his/her record as a student; the original to be furnished without charge and copies furnished at limited charges established by the law.

The Billerica School Committee has established as its policy that no teacher shall release the name, address, grades or other records of any student to any individual other than the student, his/her parents, or his/her guardian. Release of records to authorized institutions, such as colleges, scholarship programs, and districts to which students transfer, shall be through the central office of each school.

Pupil absent, tardy or dismissal records may be shown to outside agencies or agents only after permission has been granted by the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee.

NON-CUSTODIAL PARENT'S RIGHTS

In August 2006, the Board of Education adopted final technical amendments to the Student Records Regulations to make them consistent with G.L. c. 71, §34H, as most recently amended by Chapter 62 of the Acts of 2006. The state statute and regulations expand the categories of non-custodial parents who are eligible to obtain access to their children's student records and are consistent with the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. As set forth in the amended regulation, 603 CMR 23.07(5), non-custodial parents are eligible to obtain access to their children's student records unless the school or district has been given documentation that:

- 1. the parent has been denied legal custody or has been ordered to supervised visitation, based on a threat to the safety of the student and the threat is specifically noted in the order pertaining to custody or supervised visitation, or the parent has been denied visitation, or
- 2. the parent's access to the student has been restricted by a temporary or permanent protective order, unless the protective order (or any subsequent order modifying the protective order) specifically allows access to the information contained in the student record, or
- 3. there is an order of a probate and family court judge which prohibits the distribution of student records to the parent.

The law requires that "All electronic and postal address and telephone number information relating to either the work or home locations of the custodial parent shall be removed from information provided under this section. Receipt of this information shall not mandate participation in any proceeding to which notification pertains, nor shall it authorize participation in proceedings and decisions regarding the child's welfare which are not granted through the award of custody."

PROCEDURE Required by M.G.L. c. 71 § 34H

- 1. The non-custodial parent must annually submit a written request for educational information to the school principal.
- 2. Upon receipt of a request for information under this section, the school shall review the student record for any documents limiting or restricting parental access to a student's records or information which have been provided to the school or school district and shall immediately notify the custodial parent of the receipt of the request.
- 3. Notification must be made by certified mail and by first class mail in both the primary language of the custodial parent and in English. The notification shall also inform the custodial parent that information requested under this section shall be provided to the requesting parent after 21 days unless the custodial parent provides to the principal of the school documentation of any court order which prohibits contact with the child, or prohibits the distribution of the information referred to in this section or which is a temporary or permanent order issued to

provide protection to the child in the custodial parent's custody from abuse by the requesting parent unless the protective order or any subsequent order which modifies the protective order, specifically allows access to the information described in this section.

SUBSEQUENT REQUESTS

In each subsequent year, the non-custodial parent shall indicate in the annual written request that he/she continues to be entitled to the unsupervised visitation with the child and is eligible for the receipt of educational information.

Chapter 71, Section 34H

SCHOOL RECORDS

In accordance with General Law 603 CMR 23.00 Student Records, parents or guardians, upon request, may inspect academic, scholastic or any other records concerning their children, regardless of the age. All students who are fourteen years of age or older or upon entering the ninth grade, whichever comes first, may see his/her records. A student eighteen years of age or older is allowed complete access to all of his/her school records and may elect to control access. Access to records requires a two-day notice.

RETENTION OF STUDENT RECORDS

Permanent records (transcripts) are retained for sixty years. Temporary records are retained for a maximum of two (2) years after a student graduates and seven years if a student leaves the school system. Two years after graduation a student's temporary record will be destroyed. Those who do not graduate or leave the school system prior to graduating may request their records seven years after leaving the school system. After seven years these records will be destroyed.

Copies of the State regulations are available in the Billerica Memorial High School Guidance Office and the Main Office of other schools.

DIRECTORY INFORMATION NOTICE

The Billerica Public Schools has designated certain information contained in the education records or its students as directory information for purposes of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and the Student Record Regulations at 603 CMR 23.00 et seq.

The following information regarding students is considered directory information:

(1) name, (2) address, (3) telephone number, (4) date and place of birth, (5) major field of study, (6) participation in officially recognized activities and sports, (7) weight and height of members of athletic teams, (8) dates of attendance, (9) degrees, honors and awards received, (10) post high school plans of the student.

Directory information may be disclosed for any purpose INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO Homeroom Lists, Class Lists, and Honor Rolls, at the discretion of the school system, without the consent of a parent of a student or an eligible student. Parents of students and eligible students have the right, however, to refuse to permit the designation of any or all of the above information as directory information. In that case, this information will not be disclosed except with the consent of a parent or student, or as otherwise allowed by FERPA and 603 CMR 23.00 et seq. You are hereby notified that pursuant to this notification, the school system will provide requested directory information to military recruiters unless the parent or eligible student specifically directs otherwise, as required by the No Child Left Behind Act.

Any parent or student refusing to have any or all of the designated directory information disclosed must file written notification to this effect with the Principal on or before the 15th day of each September.

In the event that a refusal is not filed, it is assumed that neither a parent of a student or eligible student objects to the

release of the directory information designated.

TEACHING ABOUT DRUGS, ALCOHOL, AND TOBACCO

Drug abuse, including the illegal and inappropriate use of alcohol, is a community problem. The Billerica School Committee recognizes its responsibility to educate students in this area and to formulate policies which will assist school administrators and teachers with problems arising from the misuse of drugs.

The School Committee shall approve guidelines for drug education and the handling of drug abuse as recommended by the Superintendent in accordance with the guidelines of the State Department of Education Drug Advisory Committee. It shall be the responsibility of the Superintendent and his/her staff to review these guidelines periodically and to present their recommendations to the committee.

The committee and school department employees shall cooperate with other community agencies concerned with drug abuse.

PARENTAL NOTIFICATION RELATIVE TO SEX EDUCATION

In accordance with General Laws Chapter 71, Section 32A, the Billerica School Committee has adopted this policy on the rights of parents and guardians of our students in relation to curriculum that primarily involves human sexual education or human sexuality issues.

At the beginning of each school year, all parents/guardians in our schools will be notified in writing of courses and curriculum we offer that primarily involve human sexual education or human sexuality issues. The Superintendent of Schools will determine the administrator(s) responsible for sending the notice(s). Parents/guardians of students who enroll in school after the start of the school year will be given written notice at the time of enrollment. If the planned curriculum changes during the school year, to the extent practicable, the parents/guardians will be notified of this fact in a timely manner for implementation.

Each such notice to parents/guardians will include a brief description of the curriculum covered by this policy, and will inform parents/guardians that they may:

- exempt their child from any portion of the curriculum that primarily involves human sexual education or human sexuality issues, without penalty to the student, by sending a letter to the school principal requesting an exemption. Any student who is exempted by request of the parent/guardian under this policy may be given an alternative assignment.
- inspect and review instruction materials for these curricula, which will be made reasonably accessible to
 parents/guardians and others to the extent practicable. Parents/guardians may arrange with the principal to
 review the materials at the school, and may also review them at other locations that may be determined by the
 Superintendent of Schools.
- 3. A parent/guardian who is dissatisfied with a decision of the principal concerning notice, access to instructional materials, or exemption for the student under this policy may send a written request to the Superintendent for review of the issue. The Superintendent or designee will review the issue and give the parent/guardian a timely written decision, preferably within two weeks of the request. A parent/guardian who is dissatisfied with the Superintendent's decision may send a written request to the School Committee for review of the issue. The School Committee will review the issue and give the parents/guardian a timely written decision, preferably within four weeks of the request. A parent/guardian who is still dissatisfied after this process may send a written request to the Commissioner of Education for review of the issue in dispute.

WELLNESS POLICY

The School Committee recognizes the relationship between student well-being and student achievement as well as the importance of a comprehensive district wellness program. It is the purpose of the Billerica School District Wellness Policy to promote healthy behaviors and decision-making, and to encourage lifelong patterns of balanced nutrition, exercise, and emotional and physical well-being.]

To support the Billerica Public Schools Wellness Policy, parents are asked to refrain from bringing food into the schools without the expressed permission of the school principal and school nurse. Non-food items are recommended for inschool celebrations, such as student birthdays. Additionally, students should be encouraged to engage in physical activity outside of school for at least 30 minutes per day.

TITLE I NOTIFICATION TO PARENTS REGARDING PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS OF CLASSROOM TEACHERS

The Federal *No Child Left Behind Act of 2001* requires school districts that receive federal Title I funding to notify parents of their right to know the professional qualifications of the classroom teachers who instruct their child.

As a recipient of these funds, Billerica Public Schools will provide you with this information in a timely manner if you request it. Specifically, you have the right to request the following information about each of your child's classroom teachers:

- Whether the teacher meets the state qualifications and licensing criteria for the grades and subjects he or she teaches.
- Whether the teacher is teaching under emergency or provisional status because of special circumstances.
- The teacher's college major, whether the teacher has any advanced degrees, also the field of discipline of the certification or degree.
- Whether paraprofessionals provide services to your child and, if so, their qualifications.
- NCLB Report Cards are published annually.

Billerica Public Schools is committed to providing quality instruction for all students and does so by employing the most qualified individuals to teach and support each student in the classroom. If you would like to receive any information listed above for your child's teacher, please contact the Office of the Superintendent of Schools.

Billerica Public Schools Email Directory Click on the email link to email a faculty member

		T	1
HAMALAINEN, SUSAN	BEAM	BEAM	shamalainen@billerica.k12.ma.us
SHANNON, TARA	BEAM	BEAM	tshannon@billerica.k12.ma.us
COLLINS, KAREN	BEAM	BEAM	kcollins@billerica.k12.ma.us
BARTON-LECH, MARY	BMHS	Art	mbarton-lech@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAVIDSON, SANDRA	BMHS	Art	sdavidson@billerica.k12.ma.us
FREDERICKS, BRENDA	BMHS	Art	bfredericks@billerica.k12.ma.us
BIAGIOTTI, DEBORAH	BMHS	Assistant Principal	dbiagiotti@billerica.k12.ma.us
BONAIUTO, PAMELA	BMHS	Assistant Principal	pbonaiuto@billerica.k12.ma.us
BROOKS, KEVIN	BMHS	Assistant Principal	kbrooks@billerica.k12.ma.us
BAROOSHIAN, GAYLE	BMHS	Business	gbarooshian@billerica.k12.ma.us
LUCIANO, MARGARET	BMHS	Business	Mluciano@billerica.k12.ma.us
LYDON, NANCY	BMHS	Business	nlydon@billerica.k12.ma.us
MAGLIOZZI, JOHN	BMHS	Business	jmagliozzi@billerica.k12.ma.us
NARDELLA, ANTHONY	BMHS	Business	anardella@billerica.k12.ma.us
		Coordinator PE /	
LEZENSKI, DAVID	BMHS	Health/Athletic Director	dlezenski@billerica.k12.ma.us
BLACK, RYAN	BMHS		rblack@billerica.k12.ma.us
	BMHS	English	sbujnowski@billerica.k12.ma.us
BUJNOWSKI, STACIA BUTTON, CATHERINE	BMHS	English	cbutton@billerica.k12.ma.us
CALDWELL, BRIAN	BMHS	English	bcaldwell@billerica.k12.ma.us
	BMHS	English	jcyr@billerica.k12.ma.us
CYR, JOCELYN		English	mdefeo@billerica.k12.ma.us
CADEN SARAH	BMHS	English	
GADEN, SARAH	BMHS	English	sgaden@billerica.k12.ma.us
GLEASON, STEVEN	BMHS	English	Sgleason@Billerica.k12.Ma.US
LANDRY, SHAWN	BMHS	English	slandry@billerica.k12.ma.us
ORLOV, LINDSAY	BMHS	English	lorlov@billerica.k12.ma.us
SIC, JESSICA	BMHS	English	jsic@billerica.k12.ma.us
SOUCY, JENNIFER	BMHS	English	jsoucy@billerica.k12.ma.us
WALSH, WILLIAM	BMHS	English	wwalsh@billerica.k12.ma.us
LISH, SANDY	BMHS	Family & Consumer Sc	slish@billerica.k12.ma.us
PETERSON, CHRISTOPHER	BMHS	Family & Consumer Sc	cpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us
HAGAN, CULLEN	BMHS	GUIDANCE	chagan@billerica.k12.ma.us
O'MAHONY, JULIE	BMHS	GUIDANCE	jomahony@billerica.k12.ma.us
GEORGIAN, PAMELA	BMHS	GUIDANCE	pgeorgian@billerica.k12.ma.us

DECMOND HILLE	DAMIC	Cultilana	idean and Obillarias 142 are us
DESMOND, JULIE	BMHS	Guidance	jdesmond@billerica.k12.ma.us
COIA, TRICIA	BMHS	GUIDANCE	tcoia@billerica.k12.ma.us
BOUHANDA, RACHEL	BMHS	Librarian	rbouhanda@billerica.k12.ma.us
CARROLL, BRIAN	BMHS	Mathematics	bcarroll@billerica.k12.ma.us
LAROSA, LEANNE	BMHS	Mathematics	llarosa@billerica.k12.ma.us
CRAWFORD, KATIE	BMHS	Mathematics	kcrawford@billerica.k12.ma.us
DURAND, MARY	BMHS	Mathematics	mdurand@billerica.k12.ma.us
FLANAGAN, BRIAN	BMHS	Mathematics	bflanagan@billerica.k12.ma.us
HURD, CATHERINE	BMHS	Mathematics	churd@billerica.k12.ma.us
KENNEY, CASSANDRA	BMHS	Mathematics	ckenney@billerica.k12.ma.us
LOYCANO, ELLEN MARIE	BMHS	Mathematics	eloycano@billerica.k12.ma.us
MCLAUGHLIN, LINDA	BMHS	Mathematics	Imclaughlin@billerica.k12.ma.us
REUBENSTEIN, LORI	BMHS	Mathematics	<u>Ireubenstein@billerica.k12.ma.us</u>
SCHRADER, NAOMI	BMHS	Mathematics	nquesnel@billerica.k12.ma.us
SHEA, RYAN	BMHS	Mathematics	rshea@billerica.k12.ma.us
TEWKSBURY, CHRISTINE	BMHS	Mathematics	ctewksbury@billerica.k12.ma.us
BERGERON, MEGAN	BMHS	Music	mbergeron@billerica.k12.ma.us
CARDELLA, CAROLYN	BMHS	Music	ccardella@billerica.k12.ma.us
GAGE, JEFFREY	BMHS	Music	jgage@billerica.k12.ma.us
WINCHELL, ELAINE	BMHS	Music	ewinchell@billerica.k12.ma.us
AMMENDOLIA, PATRICK	BMHS	PE / Health	pammendolia@billerica.k12.ma.us
SIGSBURY, DUANE	BMHS	PE / Health	dsigsbury@billerica.k12.ma.us
CLARK, RYANN	BMHS	PE / Health	rclark@billerica.k12.ma.us
TRACY, COLLEEN	BMHS	PE / Health	ctracy@billerica.k12.ma.us
YONIACK, SUSAN	BMHS	Performing Arts	syoniack@billerica.k12.ma.us
MURPHY, THOMAS	BMHS	Principal	tmurphy@billerica.k12.ma.us
CARSON, RICHARD	BMHS	ROTC	rcarson@billerica.k12.ma.us
EDRIS, CHRIS	BMHS	ROTC	cedris@billerica.k12.ma.us
ARSENAULT, ALICIA	BMHS	Science	aarsenault@billerica.k12.ma.us
BECKFORD, JEFFREY	BMHS	Science	jbeckford@billerica.k12.ma.us
BURNS, CHRISTOPHER	BMHS	Science	cburns@billerica.k12.ma.us
CLARK, DANIEL	BMHS	Science	dclark@billerica.k12.ma.us
OUELLETTE, KRISTINA	BMHS	Science	klouellette@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAVIS, KIMBERLY	BMHS	Science	kdavis@billerica.k12.ma.us
FLOOD, MATTHEW	BMHS	Science	mflood@billerica.k12.ma.us
HESTER JENSEN, RENE	BMHS	Science	rjensen@billerica.k12.ma.us
HINES, ESTHER	BMHS	Science	ehines@billerica.k12.ma.us
KOUSTAS, ARIANA	BMHS	Science	akoustas@billerica.k12.ma.us
BROWN, MARYLOU	BMHS	Science	mlbrown@billerica.k12.ma.us
VIGEANT, PAUL	BMHS	Science	pvigeant@billerica.k12.ma.us
YOHN, KRISTEN	BMHS	Science	kyohn@billerica.k12.ma.us

ADAMS, DAVID	BMHS	Social Studies	dadams@billerica.k12.ma.us
BAIROS, SARA	BMHS	Social Studies	sbairos@billerica.k12.ma.us
BALESTRIERI, MICHELE	BMHS	Social Studies	mbalestrieri@billerica.k12.ma.us
CAREY, MATTHEW	BMHS	Social Studies	mcarey@billerica.k12.ma.us
CICCARELLI, DAVID	BMHS	Social Studies	dciccarelli@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAGLE, MICHAEL	BMHS	Social Studies	mdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us
DYER, MARIAN	BMHS	Social Studies	mdyer@billerica.k12.ma.us
GODDARD, MICHAEL	BMHS	Social Studies	mgoddard@billerica.k12.ma.us
LIPSETT, ANDREW	BMHS	Social Studies	alipsett@billerica.k12.ma.us
,	BMHS	Social Studies	elipsett@billerica.k12.ma.us
LORDAN CHRISTOPHER			
LORDAN, CHRISTOPHER	BMHS	Social Studies	clordan@billerica.k12.ma.us
MOLLOY, JOHN	BMHS	Social Studies	jmolloy@billerica.k12.ma.us
TOPPIN, CHRISTOPHER	BMHS	Social Studies	ctoppin@billerica.k12.ma.us
YOUNG, RENEE	BMHS	Social Studies	rbigold@billerica.k12.ma.us
NORTON, JUDITH	DISTRICT	Special Ed Director	jnorton@billerica.k12.ma.us
ANDERSON, KATHRYN	BMHS	Special Education	Kaanderson@billerica.k12.ma.us
BOWEN-SANFORD, FRANCES	BMHS	Special Education	fbowensanford@billerica.k12.ma.us
CANFIELD, DONNA	BMHS	Special Education	dcanfield@billerica.k12.ma.us
COHEN, JENNIFER	BMHS	Special Education	jlcohen@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAVIS, MICHAEL	BMHS	Special Education	mrdavis@billerica.k12.ma.us
FRECHETTE, BETH ANNE	BMHS	Special Education	bfrechette@billerica.k12.ma.us
FRIEDBERG, CARLYN	BMHS	Special Education	cfriedberg@billerica.k12.ma.us
HILLSON, AMANDA	BMHS	Special Education	ahillson@billerica.k12.ma.us
LALLY, ERIN	BMHS	Special Education	elally@billerica.k12.ma.us
LANTEIGNE, SONDRA	BMHS	Special Education	slanteigne@billerica.k12.ma.us
MARTINIELLO, AMANDA	BMHS	Special Education	amartiniello@billerica.k12.ma.us
MOODY, MICHELE	BMHS	Special Education	mmoody@billerica.k12.ma.us
MOUNSEY, JAN	BMHS	Special Education	<u>imounsey@billerica.k12.ma.us</u>
O'NEILL, CATHERINE	BMHS	Special Education	cmoneill@billerica.k12.ma.us
ROYALL, DEBBI	BMHS	Special Education	droyall@billerica.k12.ma.us
SARGENT, MARIAN	BMHS	Special Education	msargent@billerica.k12.ma.us
SOLODAR, MINDY	BMHS	Special Education	msolodar@billerica.k12.ma.us
SOLY, KAREN	BMHS	Special Education	ksoly@billerica.k12.ma.us
SPENCER, LORI	BMHS	Special Education	lspencer@billerica.k12.ma.us
STATES, VICKI	BMHS	Special Education	vstates@billerica.k12.ma.us
SWEETLAND, STEPHANIE	BMHS	Special Education	ssweetland@billerica.k12.ma.us
THOMPSON, RICHARD	BMHS	Special Education	rthompson@billerica.k12.ma.us
DILUNA, FRANCIS	BMHS	STEM Coordinator	tdiluna@billerica.k12.ma.us
JACOBS, SUSAN	BMHS	Tutor	sjacobs@billerica.k12.ma.us
BOJARSKI-DEPEYROT, ELISABETH	BMHS	World Language	ebojarski@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAMON, CHRISTINE	BMHS	World Language	cdamon@billerica.k12.ma.us
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1	, 5 5	

FORD, KERIN	BMHS	World Language	kford@billerica.k12.ma.us
GROENENDYK, STEFANIA	BMHS	World Language	sgroenendyk@billerica.k12.ma.us
MACINNIS, JILL	BMHS	World Language	jmacinnis@billerica.k12.ma.us
PIWOWAR, CAROLYN	BMHS	World Language	cpiwowar@billerica.k12.ma.us
RIES, JAMES	BMHS	World Language	jries@billerica.k12.ma.us
RIVERA, KAREN	BMHS	World Language	krivera@billerica.k12.ma.us
ROPER, BRITTA	BMHS	World Language	broper@billerica.k12.ma.us
		Assistant	
GALDSTON, DEANNE	District	Superintendent	dgaldston@billerica.k12.ma.us
BOTTARI, STEVEN	District	Director of Guidance	sbottari@billerica.k12.ma.us
BUTZE, CAROLE	District	Director of Nurses	cbutze@billerica.k12.ma.us
O'BRIEN, NOREEN	District	ELL	nobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us
BLAKE, ANNE	District	ELL Coordinator	mlombard@billerica.k12.ma.us
HULSOOR, ROBIN	District	Finance/Op Director	rhulsoor@billerica.k12.ma.us
DEARBECK, CHRISTOPHER	District	Fine Arts Coordinator	cdearbeck@billerica.k12.ma.us
LASKEY, APRIL	District	Food Services	alaskey@billerica.k12.ma.us
WALLEDED CAROLVAIN	District	Human Resources	avalelle are Obilleries 1/12 assure
WAHLBERG, CAROLYNN	District	Director K-8 Humanities	cwahlberg@billerica.k12.ma.us
KEANE, MARYBETH	District	Coordinator	mkeane@billerica.k12.ma.us
MCCULLEY, CATHY	District	K-8 STEM Coordinator	cmcculley@billerica.k12.ma.us
MOREAU, SHARON	DISTRICT	Kindergarten IS	smoreau@billerica.k12.ma.us
ANDERSON, LISA	District	Special Education	landerson@billerica.k12.ma.us
ARNOLD, LORI	District	Special Education	larnold@billerica.k12.ma.us
GREELEY, KAREN	District	Special Education	kgreeley@billerica.k12.ma.us
WRIGHT, MARTHA	District	Special Education	mwright@billerica.k12.ma.us
PIWOWAR, TIMOTHY	District	Superintendent	tpiwowar@billerica.k12.ma.us
BISHOP, MARK	District	Technology Director	mbishop@billerica.k12.ma.us
MASON, JUDITH	Ditson	Art	jamason@billerica.k12.ma.us
VITT, CHRISTINE	Ditson	Art	ccarter@billerica.k12.ma.us
HANNON, JULIA	Ditson	Assistant Principal	jhannon@billerica.k12.ma.us
AUCOIN, VICTORIA	Ditson	Elem Teacher	vaucoin@billerica.k12.ma.us
BEJIAN, LISA	Ditson	Elem Teacher	lbejian@billerica.k12.ma.us
BOUTHILLETTE, PATRICIA	Ditson	Elem Teacher	pbouthillette@billerica.k12.ma.us
BURNS, HELEN	Ditson	Elem Teacher	hburns@billerica.k12.ma.us
CASEY, BRIENNE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	bcasey@billerica.k12.ma.us
COLLINS, VALERIE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	vcollins@billerica.k12.ma.us
COOK, CAROL	Ditson	Elem Teacher	ccook@billerica.k12.ma.us
CORDEIRO, NICOLE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	ncordeiro@billerica.k12.ma.us
COLIVEE ANDREA			
COUVEE, ANDREA	Ditson	Elem Teacher	acouvee@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAYE, MELISSA	Ditson Ditson	Elem Teacher Elem Teacher	acouvee@billerica.k12.ma.us mdaye@billerica.k12.ma.us

	1		
GRAHAM, DIANE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	dgraham@billerica.k12.ma.us
HAMELIN, TARA	Ditson	Elem Teacher	thamelin@billerica.k12.ma.us
KALMES, ROBBIN	Ditson	Elem Teacher	rkalmes@billerica.k12.ma.us
LANDRY, JOANNE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	jlandry@billerica.k12.ma.us
MAES, KATHRYN	Ditson	Elem Teacher	kmaes@billerica.k12.ma.us
MARSHALL, MAIREN	Ditson	Elem Teacher	memarshall@billerica.k12.ma.us
MCBOURNIE, AMY	Ditson	Elem Teacher	amcbournie@billerica.k12.ma.us
MCNAMARA, JENNIFER	Ditson	Elem Teacher	jmcnamara@billerica.k12.ma.us
MEAGHER, CASEY	Ditson	Elem Teacher	cmeagher@billerica.k12.ma.us
MEDEIROS, KATHIE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	kmedeiros@billerica.k12.ma.us
MILANES, JANE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	jmilanes@billerica.k12.ma.us
MILLER, MEAGHAN	Ditson	Elem Teacher	mmiller@billerica.k12.ma.us
MULLEN, CHARLENE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	cmullen@billerica.k12.ma.us
MURPHY, VALERIE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	vmurphy@billerica.k12.ma.us
ORLANDO, NICOLE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	norlando@billerica.k12.ma.us
REID, MARYELLEN	Ditson	Elem Teacher	mreid@billerica.k12.ma.us
SEITZ, SUSAN	Ditson	Elem Teacher	sseitz@billerica.k12.ma.us
STEVENS, THONGSAMAI	Ditson	Elem Teacher	tstevens@billerica.k12.ma.us
STONE, SUZANNAH	Ditson	Elem Teacher	sstone@billerica.k12.ma.us
SWINFORD, CELINE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	cswinford@billerica.k12.ma.us
TOBIN, ELIZABETH	Ditson	Elem Teacher	etobin@billerica.k12.ma.us
WHITE, DEANNE	Ditson	Elem Teacher	dwhite@billerica.k12.ma.us
SPOSITO, TRINA	Ditson	Elem Teacher	tsposito@billerica.k12.ma.us
ANDERSON, HILARY	Ditson	Music	handerso@billerica.k12.ma.us
POSTER, ERIC	Ditson	Music	eposter@billerica.k12.ma.us
O'BRIEN, CAROLYN	Ditson	PE / Health	cobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us
ROAKE, EILEEN	Ditson	Principal	eroake@billerica.k12.ma.us
BOURGEOIS, KATHRYN	Ditson	Reading	kbourgeois@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAGLE, DEBRA	Ditson	Reading	ddagle@billerica.k12.ma.us
FLYNN-KEOUGH, MEGAN	Ditson	Reading	mkeough@billerica.k12.ma.us
CLEMENTE, ELIZABETH	Ditson	Special Education	eclemente@billerica.k12.ma.us
CURTISS, DEBORAH	Ditson	Special Education	dcurtiss@billerica.k12.ma.us
DEYOUNG, AMY	Ditson	Special Education	adeyoung@billerica.k12.ma.us
FANNING, CHRISTINE	Ditson	Special Education	cfanning@billerica.k12.ma.us
GLADD-WALSH, CYNTHIA	Ditson	Special Education	cgladd-walsh@billerica.k12.ma.us
GREENSTEIN, JULIEMARIE	Ditson	Special Education	jgreenstein@billerica.k12.ma.us
KHELFAOUI, GHALIA	Ditson	Special Education	gkhelfaoui@billerica.k12.ma.us
KIRSCH, DEANA	Ditson	Special Education	dkirsch@billerica.k12.ma.us
LEIPOW, NICHOLE	Ditson	Special Education	nleipow@billerica.k12.ma.us
LYNCH, COLLEEN	Ditson	Special Education	clynch@billerica.k12.ma.us
ROUX, CHRISTINA	Ditson	Special Education	croux@billerica.k12.ma.us
	•		

STERNER, KATLYN	Ditson	Special Education	ksterner@billerica.k12.ma.us
WHITEHOUSE, HEATHER	Ditson	Special Education	hwhitehouse@billerica.k12.ma.us
SCHNELL, KAYLA	Dutile	Music	kschnell@billerica.k12.ma.us
		Instructional	
MCDONNELL, DONNA	Dutile	Technology	dmcdonnell@billerica.k12.ma.us
CHARLAND, SUZANNE	Dutile	Librarian	scharland@billerica.k12.ma.us
MADERA, DEBRA	Dutile	Social Worker	dmadera@billerica.k12.ma.us
ESPARZA, TRICIA	Dutile	Special Education	tesparza@billerica.k12.ma.us
CARLSON, DENISE	Dutile	Elem. Teacher	dcarlson@billerica.k12.ma.us
PEARSON, KAREN	Dutile	Art	kpearson@billerica.k12.ma.us
ANDRADE, LISA	Dutile	Elem Teacher	landrade@billerica.k12.ma.us
BARRY, CAITLIN	Dutile	Elem Teacher	cbarry@billerica.k12.ma.us
CAMARA, LINDA	Dutile	Elem Teacher	lcamara@billerica.k12.ma.us
CARLSON, DENISE	Dutile	Elem Teacher	dcarlson@billerica.k12.ma.us
COCHRAN, KATHLEEN	Dutile	Elem Teacher	kcochran@billerica.k12.ma.us
COHEN, JESSICA	Dutile	Elem Teacher	jcohen@billerica.k12.ma.us
CONTE, EILEEN	Dutile	Elem Teacher	econte@billerica.k12.ma.us
DARES, KIMBERLY	Dutile	Elem Teacher	kingalls@billerica.k12.ma.us
GODZYK, MIRANDA	Dutile	Elem Teacher	mgodzyk@billerica.k12.ma.us
HAMM, SUSAN	Dutile	Elem Teacher	shamm@billerica.k12.ma.us
JOYCE, LINDSEY	Dutile	Elem Teacher	ljoyce@billerica.k12.ma.us
KELLY, KRISTIN	Dutile	Elem Teacher	kkelly@billerica.k12.ma.us
MARTINEZ, LAURA	Dutile	Elem Teacher	LMARTINEZ@BILLERICA.K12.MA.US
MONTGOMERY, MICHELLE	Dutile	Elem Teacher	shellbell959@yahoo.com
ROSS, MARCI	Dutile	Elem Teacher	mross@billerica.k12.ma.us
SALERNO, LAURA	Dutile	Elem Teacher	Isalerno@billerica.k12.ma.us
THOMPSON, ELIZABETH	Dutile	Elem Teacher	emonaghan@billerica.k12.ma.us
TIGHE, KEVIN	Dutile	Special Education	ktighe@billerica.k12.ma.us
PETERS, BETHANY	Dutile	PE / Health	syke7782@hotmail.com
BALZOTTI, CHRISTINE	Dutile	Principal	cbalzotti@billerica.k12.ma.us
FOLLOWS, LISA	Dutile	Reading	lfollows@billerica.k12.ma.us
CODY, DEBRA	Dutile	Special Education	dcody@billerica.k12.ma.us
IRONS, KERRY	Dutile	Special Education	kirons@billerica.k12.ma.us
LAROSA, CATHERINE	Dutile	Special Education	clarosa@billerica.k12.ma.us
RICHARDS, LUCILLE	Dutile	Special Education	Irichards@billerica.k12.ma.us
HINDLIAN, NANCY	Dutile/Hajjar	Reading	nhindlian@billerica.k12.ma.us
KIRCH, KRISTEN	Hajjar	Art	kkirch@billerica.k12.ma.us
ANDERSON, CHRISTOPHER	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	canderson@billerica.k12.ma.us
ANDERSON, KELLY	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	kanderson@billerica.k12.ma.us
BROW, JENNIFER	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	jwyman@billerica.k12.ma.us
CAPALDO, MARIA GAIL	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	mcapaldo@billerica.k12.ma.us
COLE, EILEEN	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	ecole@billerica.k12.ma.us

	T	I	
COOKE, BARBARA	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	bcooke.@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAGENAIS, GIANNA	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	gdagenais@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAVIS, JENNIFER	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	jdavis@billerica.k12.ma.us
DOMINGUES, SHANNON	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	sdomingues@billerica.k12.ma.us
FARIA, PATRICIA	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	PFARIA@BILLERICA.K12.MA.US
GAGE, LAURA	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	lgage@billerica.k12.ma.us
HUCKINS, SUSAN	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	shuckins@billerica.k12.ma.us
JACAVANCO, GARNETT	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	GJACAVANCO@BILLERICA.K12.MA.US
JOHNSON, MAUREEN	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	mejohnson@billerica.k12.ma.us
KENNEDY, LOU ANN	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	lkennedy@billerica.k12.ma.us
LANE, HEIDI	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	hlane@billerica.k12.ma.us
MACNEIL, BONNIE	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	bmacneil@billerica.k12.ma.us
MADSEN, KERRY	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	kmadsen@billerica.k12.ma.us
MILLER, CAROLINE	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	cmiller@billerica.k12.ma.us
ZHANG, LEXI	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	lzhang@billerica.k12.ma.us
O'BRIEN, KATHRYN	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	kcobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us
REARDON, CAROLE	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	creardon@billerica.k12.ma.us
RILEY, KRISTIN	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	kriley@billerica.k12.ma.us
SHEA, BARBARA	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	bshea@billerica.k12.ma.us
ST ONGE, MICHELLE	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	mstonge@billerica.k12.ma.us
WATERMAN, ASHLEY	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	awaterman@billerica.k12.ma.us
XAVIER, MAUREEN	Hajjar	Elem Teacher	mxavier@billerica.k12.ma.us
CHARLAND, SUZANNE	Hajjar	Librarian	scharland@billerica.k12.ma.us
FERREIRA, KATHLEEN	Hajjar	Life Skills	kferreira@billerica.k12.ma.us
JENKINS, KERRY	Hajjar	Life Skills	kjenkins@billerica.k12.ma.us
HARMON, JULIA	Hajjar	Music	jharmon@billerica.k12.ma.us
TONER, CARMELLA	Hajjar	PE / Health	ctoner@billerica.k12.ma.us
DEVINE, ELIZABETH	Hajjar	Principal	edevine@billerica.k12.ma.us
FINNEY, CHRISTINE	Hajjar	Reading	cfinney@billerica.k12.ma.us
AHERN, MARION	Hajjar	Special Education	mahern@billerica.k12.ma.us
GOSS-BAKER, APRIL	Hajjar	Special Education	agossbaker@billerica.k12.ma.us
KUNZE, HEIDI	Hajjar	Special Education	hkunze@billerica.k12.ma.us
MASON, JANET	Hajjar	Special Education	jmason@billerica.k12.ma.us
PETERSEN, LESLIE	Hajjar	Special Education	lpetersen@billerica.k12.ma.us
SPINOSA-HALADAY, MARY	Hajjar	Special Education	mspinosa-haladay@billerica.k12.ma.us
TAYLOR-RUGGIERO, JULIANNE	Hajjar	Special Education	jtaylor@billerica.k12.ma.us
BARALDI-LUCEY, NANCY	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	nbaraldi-lucey@billerica.k12.ma.us
BROWN, MEGAN	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	mbrown@billerica.k12.ma.us
BUSALACCHI, CAROLYN	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	cbusalacchi@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAME, ALICIA	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	adame@billerica.k12.ma.us
GOGGIN, JANE	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	jgoggin@billerica.k12.ma.us
		1	

GRYNKIEWICZ, CAROL	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	cgrynkiewicz@billerica.k12.ma.us
HUGHES, GRETCHEN	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	ghughes@billerica.k12.ma.us
JUDGE, ALANNA	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	ajudge@billerica.k12.ma.us
KANE, MEGAN	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	mkane@billerica.k12.ma.us
KELLY-DOUGREY, JULIANNE	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	Jdougrey@billerica.k12.ma.us
KINSLEY, STEFANIE	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	skinsley@billerica.k12.ma.us
LOCKE, ANN MARIE	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	alocke@billerica.k12.ma.us
LOGUIDICE, ANGELA	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	ALOGUIDICE@BILLERICA.K12.MA.US
LYNCH, HEIDI	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	hlynch@billerica.k12.ma.us
MARBLE, DAVID	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	dmarble@billerica.k12.ma.us
NAULT, ANNELIESE	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	anault@billerica.k12.ma.us
PEARSON, BETH	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	bpearson@billerica.k12.ma.us
SPARKS, LINDA	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	lsparks@billerica.k12.ma.us
STIMPSON, JENNIFER	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	jstimpson@billerica.k12.ma.us
SULLIVAN, DANIELLE	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	dsullivan@billerica.k12.ma.us
WELLOCK, SARAH	Kennedy	Elem Teacher	swellock@billerica.k12.ma.us
DONOGHUE, CHRISTINE	Kennedy	Information Systems	cdonoghue@billerica.k12.ma.us
MURABITO-LAFORGE,	_		
JENNIFER	Kennedy	Music	JLAFORGE@billerica.k12.ma.us
KEOUGH, MATTHEW	Kennedy	PE / Health	makeough@billerica.k12.ma.us
SULLIVAN, WILLIAM	Kennedy	PE / Health	wsullivan@billerica.k12.ma.us
FLANAGAN, PATRICIA	Kennedy	Reading	pflanagan@billerica.k12.ma.us
MAZUR, KIM MARIE	Kennedy	Reading	kfudge@billerica.k12.ma.us
ESPARZA, TRICIA	Kennedy	Special Education	tesparza@billerica.k12.ma.us
FIORINO, KRISTIN	Kennedy	Special Education	kfiorino@billerica.k12.ma.us
GOSPODAREK, ROBIN	Kennedy	Special Education	rgospodarek@billerica.k12.ma.us
MAHON, KAREN	Kennedy	Special Education	kmahon@billerica.k12.ma.us
O'ROURKE, SUE ELLEN	Kennedy	Special Education	sorourke@billerica.k12.ma.us
TELEP, JULIE	Kennedy	Special Education	jtelep@billerica.k12.ma.us
MILNER, DANIELLE	Locke	Art	dmilner@billerica.k12.ma.us
PETERS, PHILLIP	Locke	Assistant Principal	ppeters@billerica.k12.ma.us
AKERLEY, BARBARA	Locke	English	bakerley@billerica.k12.ma.us
DEPIERRO, MARION	Locke	English	mdepierro@billerica.k12.ma.us
GINSBURG, KATHLEEN	Locke	English	kginsburg@billerica.k12.ma.us
HEBERT, KRISTEN	Locke	English	kking@billerica.k12.ma.us
O'KEEFE, SHARON	Locke	English	sokeefe@billerica.k12.ma.us
SMITH, JARED	Locke	English	jsmith@billerica.k12.ma.us
WHITE, JASON	Locke	English	jewhite@billerica.k12.ma.us
ROGERS, TERESA	Locke	Family & Consumer Sc	trogers@billerica.k12.ma.us
RYDER, FREDA	Locke	Information Systems	fryder@billerica.k12.ma.us
EMERY, AMANDA	Locke	Librarian	aemery@billerica.k12.ma.us
CHAPMAN, ROBYN	Locke	Mathematics	rchapman@billerica.k12.ma.us

HOHRATH, MARY	Locke	Mathematics	mhohrath@billerica.k12.ma.us
HOPKINS, MEGHAN	Locke	Mathematics	mhopkins@billerica.k12.ma.us
KURKER, KATHERINE	Locke	Mathematics	kkurker@billerica.k12.ma.us
LUCIA, DAVID	Locke	Mathematics	dlucia@billerica.k12.ma.us
RUGGERI, NICOLE	Locke	Mathematics	nruggeri@billerica.k12.ma.us
TEIXEIRA, CHRISTINE	Locke	Mathematics	cteixeira@billerica.k12.ma.us
TERNULLO, KAREN	Locke	Mathematics	kternullo@billerica.k12.ma.us
GARDNER, MICHELA	Locke	Music	mgardner@billerica.k12.ma.us
CAPADANNO, JOAN	Locke	PE / Health	jcapadanno@billerica.k12.ma.us
CARPENTER, DEBORAH	Locke	PE / Health	dcarpenter@billerica.k12.ma.us
FLYNN, CRAIG	Locke	PE / Health	cflynn@billerica.k12.ma.us
HIGGINS, PATRICIA	Locke	PE / Health	phiggins@billerica.k12.ma.us
MCCAFFERTY, JOSEPHINE	Locke	PE / Health	jmccafferty@billerica.k12.ma.us
GARAS, ANTHONY	Locke	Principal	tgaras@billerica.k12.ma.us
DADDARIO, LINDA	Locke	Reading	ldaddario@billerica.k12.ma.us
WATERMAN, AMANDA	Locke	Reading	awaterman@billerica.k12.ma.us
FOURNIER, JUDITH	Locke	Science	jfournier@billerica.k12.ma.us
HODGKINSON, KIMBERLY	Locke	Science	khodgkinson@billerica.k12.ma.us
HUGHES, MAUREEN	Locke	Science	mhughes@billerica.k12.ma.us
O'MAHONY, CINDEE	Locke	Science	comahony@billerica.k12.ma.us
PARKER, MAUREEN	Locke	Science	mparker@billerica.k12.ma.us
SANE, SAMIDHA	Locke	Science	ssane@billerica.k12.ma.us
TOLLESON, JENNIFER	Locke	Science	jtolleson@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAMIANO, ANTHONY	Locke	Social Studies	adamiano@billerica.k12.ma.us
DONESKI, CHRISTOPHER	Locke	Social Studies	cdoneski@billerica.k12.ma.us
LAVALLE, ANDREW	Locke	Social Studies	alavalle@billerica.k12.ma.us
MCCARTHY, MICHAEL	Locke	Social Studies	mmccarthy@billerica.k12.ma.us
PATON, MARK	Locke	Social Studies	mpaton@billerica.k12.ma.us
PRENDERGAST, SHERI	Locke	Social Studies	sprendergast@billerica.k12.ma.us
WESOLOSKI, JERRY	Locke	Social Studies	jwesoloski@billerica.k12.ma.us
BONFIGLIO, ROSEMARIE	Locke	Special Education	rbonfiglio@billerica.k12.ma.us
BUCHANAN, KATHLEEN	Locke	Special Education	kbuchanan@billerica.k12.ma.us
DONALDSON, KATHRYN	Locke	Special Education	ksim@billerica.k12.ma.us
FARMER, LISA	Locke	Special Education	lfarmer@billerica.k12.ma.us
GILMAN, ALISON	Locke	Special Education	agilman@billerica.k12.ma.us
HICKS, KAREN	Locke	Special Education	khicks@billerica.k12.ma.us
JARMUSIK, BRIAN	Locke	Special Education	bjarmusik@billerica.k12.ma.us
KUCZKOWSKI, DANIELLE	Locke	Special Education	dkuczowski@billerica.k12.ma.us
LYTTLE, JUDITH	Locke	Special Education	jlyttle@billerica.k12.ma.us
PAGINGTON, ANDREA	Locke	Special Education	apagington@billerica.k12.ma.us
SPARKES, LAUREN	Locke	Special Education	lsparkes@billerica.k12.ma.us
	_		

Locke	Special Education	mwells@billerica.k12.ma.us
	i i	awenrich@billerica.k12.ma.us
	·	hdebenedetto@billerica.k12.ma.us
		aderhovanesian@billerica.k12.ma.us
	3 3	cpingree@billerica.k12.ma.us
	<u> </u>	jfuller@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Art	bkelley@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Art	rmunn@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Assistant Principal	bmccann@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	English	kdelano@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall		jharland@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall		pjmccarthy@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	English	jmcelhaney@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	English	koneill@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Information Systems	slynch@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Librarian	mmelaugh@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Mathematics	radamson@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Mathematics	sahern@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Mathematics	mashe@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Mathematics	kdeiorio@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Mathematics	celliott@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Mathematics	agardner@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Mathematics	jhealey@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Mathematics	jmorgan2319@gmail.com
Marshall	Industrial Arts	bkellman@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Music	jmoriarty@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	PE / Health	jegan@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	PE / Health	rmckenna@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	PE / Health	kmcnulty@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	PE / Health	kmooney@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	PE / Health	htuxbury@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Principal	mrossi@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Reading	kmgerrit@gmail.com
Marshall	Reading	lhigson@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Reading	klaprade@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Reading	ssullivan@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Science	sbishop@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Science	elinszner@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Science	rlundquist@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Science	rmiller@billerica.k12.ma.us
Marshall	Science	DPress@billerica.k12.ma.us
	Marshall	Locke World Language Locke World Language Locke World Language Marshall Social Studies Marshall Art Marshall Art Marshall English Marshall Information Systems Marshall Mathematics Marshall Pe / Health Marshall Reading Marshall Science Marshall Science Marshall Science Marshall Science Marshall Science

TURNER, JACLYN Marshall Social Studies Defreo, Donald Marshall Social Studies Defreo, Donald Marshall Social Studies Social Studies Social Studies Graham, Rebecca Marshall Social Studies Graham, Rebecca Marshall Social Studies Graham, Beblecca Marshall Social Studies Graham, Devin Marshall Social Studies Sorganambillerica k12.ma.us Sorganambillerica k12.ma.us Sorganambillerica k12.ma.us Sorganambillerica k12.ma.us Sorganambillerica k12.ma.us Sorganambillerica k12.ma.us Herriault, SHAWN Marshall Social Studies Sorganambillerica k12.ma.us BROWN, Dafran Marshall Social Studies Steriaul (Babillerica k12.ma.us BROWN, Dafran Marshall Social Studies Steriaul (Babillerica k12.ma.us BROWN, Dafran Marshall Special Education Casey@billerica k12.ma.us Sorganambillerica k12.ma.us Social Studies Sorganambillerica k12.ma.us BROWN, Dafran Marshall Special Education Special Education Jaggnon@billerica k12.ma.us Jaggnon@bill	CALENANE IOUN		c :	
CHAGNON, BRADEN Marshall Social Studies defec@billerica.k12.ma.us GRAHAM, REBECCA Marshall Social Studies grenham@billerica.k12.ma.us GRAHAM, REBECCA Marshall Social Studies grenham@billerica.k12.ma.us HAGAN, DEVIN Marshall Social Studies dhagan@billerica.k12.ma.us SORAGHAN, LAURA Marshall Social Studies Isoraghan@billerica.k12.ma.us SORAGHAN, LAURA Marshall Social Studies stheriaul@billerica.k12.ma.us BROWN, DAFNA Marshall Special Education dbrown@billerica.k12.ma.us BROWN, DAFNA Marshall Special Education dbrown@billerica.k12.ma.us BROWN, DAFNA Marshall Special Education ccasey@billerica.k12.ma.us SPECIAL Education Special Education blown@billerica.k12.ma.us GASEY, COLLEEN Marshall Special Education kdomina@billerica.k12.ma.us GASHON, LEAH MARIE Marshall Special Education lgagnon@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education lgagnon@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education lgagnon@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education lganon@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education lganon@billerica.k12.ma.us MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education staferiere@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MORDON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education lgapas@billerica.k12.ma.us MORD	SALEMME, JOHN	Marshall	Science	jsalemme@billerica.k12.ma.us
DEFEO, DONALD Marshall Social Studies GRAHAM, REBECCA Marshall Social Studies GRAHAM, REBECCA Marshall Social Studies Marshall Social Studies Spraham@billerica.k12.ma.us SORAGHAM, LAURA Marshall Social Studies Spraham@billerica.k12.ma.us SORAGHAM, LAURA Marshall Social Studies Spraham@billerica.k12.ma.us BROWN, DAFNA Marshall Special Education Marshall Special Education Marshall Special Education Moryan@billerica.k12.ma.us Special Education Special Education Casev@billerica.k12.ma.us Marshall Special Education Marshall Special Education Special Education Marshall Marshall Special Education Marshall Special Education Marshall Special Education Marshall Marshall Special Education Marshall				
GRAHAM, REBECCA Marshall Social Studies trgraham@billerica.k12.ma.us social Studies dhagan@billerica.k12.ma.us social Studies lsoraghan@billerica.k12.ma.us social Studies lsoraghan@billerica.k12.ma.us social Studies stematic@billerica.k12.ma.us social Studies stematic@billerica.k12.ma.us social Studies stematic@billerica.k12.ma.us dbrown@billerica.k12.ma.us stematic@billerica.k12.ma.us dbrown@billerica.k12.ma.us stematic@billerica.k12.ma.us stemat	·			
HAGAN, DEVIN Marshall Social Studies Isoraghan@billerica.k12.ma.us SORAGHAN, LAURA Marshall Social Studies Isoraghan@billerica.k12.ma.us THERIAULT, SHAWN Marshall Social Studies stheriault@billerica.k12.ma.us BROWN, DAFNA Marshall Special Education Ibryan@billerica.k12.ma.us BRYAN, LAUREN Marshall Special Education Ibryan@billerica.k12.ma.us BRYAN, LAUREN Marshall Special Education Ccasey@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINA, KELLY Marshall Special Education Ibryan@billerica.k12.ma.us GAGNON, LEAH MARIE Marshall Special Education Ibamm@billerica.k12.ma.us HAMM, JAMES Marshall Special Education Ibamm@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education Ibamm@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education Ibamm@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education Ibamm@billerica.k12.ma.us MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education staferriere@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education Ktmucrphy@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education Ktmucrphy@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education Marshall Special Educat	•			
SORAGHAN, LAURA Marshall Social Studies steriault@billerica.k12.ma.us BROWN, DAFNA Marshall Special Education dbrown@billerica.k12.ma.us BROWN, DAFNA Marshall Special Education dbrown@billerica.k12.ma.us BROWN, DAFNA Marshall Special Education casey@billerica.k12.ma.us CASEY, COLLEEN Marshall Special Education casey@billerica.k12.ma.us CASEY, COLLEEN Marshall Special Education casey@billerica.k12.ma.us CASONO, LEAH MARIE Marshall Special Education kdomina@billerica.k12.ma.us GAGNON, LEAH MARIE Marshall Special Education lgagnon@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education llenkins@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education llenkins@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education slaferrier@billerica.k12.ma.us MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education cmacdonald@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education ktmurphy@billerica.k12.ma.us MORON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education mngoon@billerica.k12.ma.us MORON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education blanking billerica.k12.ma.us MACDON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education blanking billerica.k12.ma.us MACON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education blanking billerica.k12.ma.us MACON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education blanking billerica.k12.ma.us MARYANNA Marshall Marshall Special Education blanking billerica.k12.ma.us MARYANNA Marshall Marshall Special Education blanking billerica.k12.ma.us MARYANNA Marshall Marshall World Language blanking billerica.k12.ma.us MARYANNA Marshall World Language dburk@billerica.k12.ma.us MARYANNA Marshall World Language dburk@billerica.k12.ma.us MARYANNA Parker Elem Teacher blood@billerica.k12.ma.us MARYANNA Parker Elem Teacher blood@billerica.k12.ma	GRAHAM, REBECCA	Marshall	Social Studies	rgraham@billerica.k12.ma.us
THERIAULT, SHAWN Marshall Special Education BRYAN, LAUREN Marshall Special Education BRYAN, LAUREN Marshall Special Education Marshall Marshall Special Education Marshall Specia	HAGAN, DEVIN	Marshall	Social Studies	dhagan@billerica.k12.ma.us
BROWN, DAFNA Marshall Special Education dbrown@billerica.k12.ma.us BRYAN, LAUREN Marshall Special Education lbryan@billerica.k12.ma.us CASEY, COLLEEN Marshall Special Education casey@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINA, KELLY Marshall Special Education kdomina@billerica.k12.ma.us GAGNON, LEAH MARIE Marshall Special Education lgagnon@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education ljenkins@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education ljenkins@billerica.k12.ma.us LAFERRIER, SUSAN Marshall Special Education slaferriere@billerica.k12.ma.us MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education cmacdonald@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education ktmurphy@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education mgoon@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education black@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education stasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education stasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education stasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN MARShall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANNE Parker Elem Teacher lem Teacher lem Teacher bousask@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANNE Parker Elem Teacher lem Teacher bousask@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANNE Parker Elem Teacher lem Teacher lem Teacher lebusas@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANNE Parker Elem Teacher	SORAGHAN, LAURA	Marshall	Social Studies	lsoraghan@billerica.k12.ma.us
BRYAN, LAUREN Marshall Special Education Ibryan@billerica.k12.ma.us casey.@billerica.k12.ma.us becall Education casey.@billerica.k12.ma.us becall Education casey.@billerica.k12.ma.us becall Education lyangmon@billerica.k12.ma.us becall Education lyangmon@billerica.k12.ma.us lyangmon.publicrica.k12.ma.us l	THERIAULT, SHAWN	Marshall	Social Studies	stheriault@billerica.k12.ma.us
CASEY, COLLEEN Marshall Special Education Kdomina@billerica.k12.ma.us Special Education Kdomina@billerica.k12.ma.us Amshall Special Education Kdomina@billerica.k12.ma.us Amshall Special Education Jgagnon@billerica.k12.ma.us Jgagnon@bill	BROWN, DAFNA	Marshall	Special Education	dbrown@billerica.k12.ma.us
DOMINA, KELLY Marshall Special Education Jagnon@billerica.k12.ma.us AGNON, LEAH MARIE Marshall Special Education Jagnon@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education Jihamm.@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education Jihamm.@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education Jijenkins@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education Margoon@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education Margoon@billerica.k12.ma.us MOROON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education Margoon@billerica.k12.ma.us DOULOS, ERIN Marshall Special Education Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us Marshall Special Education Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us Marshall Special Education Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us Marshall Special Education Jagpapas@billerica.k12.ma.us Jagpapas@bille	BRYAN, LAUREN	Marshall	Special Education	lbryan@billerica.k12.ma.us
GAGNON, LEAH MARIE Marshall Special Education Jaganon@billerica.k12.ma.us HAMM, JAMES Marshall Special Education Jhamm@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education Jienkins@billerica.k12.ma.us LAFERRIERE, SUSAN Marshall Special Education slaferrier@billerica.k12.ma.us MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education Cmacdonald@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education Jeappas@billerica.k12.ma.us NGOON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education Jeappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education Jeappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us WALEAC, MARSHALL MARSH	CASEY, COLLEEN	Marshall	Special Education	ccasey@billerica.k12.ma.us
HAMM, JAMES Marshall Special Education jhamm@billerica.k12.ma.us JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education lienkins@billerica.k12.ma.us ACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education cmacdonald@billerica.k12.ma.us MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MORPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education mggoon@billerica.k12.ma.us NGOON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education mggoon@billerica.k12.ma.us PAPPAS, LINDSAY Marshall Special Education jpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us POMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language Idomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mgeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher bjboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CARCUINE Parker Elem Teacher cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kcopringbillerica.k12.ma.us	DOMINA, KELLY	Marshall	Special Education	kdomina@billerica.k12.ma.us
JENKINS, LINDA Marshall Special Education lienkins@billerica.k12.ma.us LAFERRIERE, SUSAN Marshall Special Education slaferriere@billerica.k12.ma.us MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education cmacdonald@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education ktmurphy@billerica.k12.ma.us MOON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education mngoon@billerica.k12.ma.us NGOON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SPAPAS, LINDSAY Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us TASIOPOULOS, ERIN Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us NAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language ldominguertapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher bounda@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher bounda@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher bounda@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher bounda@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher bounda@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kconin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kconin@billerica.k12.ma.us	GAGNON, LEAH MARIE	Marshall	Special Education	lgagnon@billerica.k12.ma.us
LAFERRIERE, SUSAN Marshall Special Education slaferriere@billerica.k12.ma.us MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education cmacdonald@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education ktmurphy@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education mngoon@billerica.k12.ma.us NGOON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us PAPPAS, LINDSAY Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us TASIOPOULOS, ERIN Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education statiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us DAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language ldomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall World Language ldomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher boyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher boyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	HAMM, JAMES	Marshall	Special Education	jhamm@billerica.k12.ma.us
MACDONALD, CHRISTINA Marshall Special Education cmacdonald@billerica.k12.ma.us MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education ktmurphy@billerica.k12.ma.us NGOON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us PAPPAS, LINDSAY Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us TASIOPOULOS, ERIN Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us NAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall World Language ldomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall World Language ldomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@bille	JENKINS, LINDA	Marshall	Special Education	ljenkins@billerica.k12.ma.us
MONDELLO, DEBRA Marshall Special Education dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education ktmurphy@billerica.k12.ma.us NGOON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education mngoon@billerica.k12.ma.us PAPPAS, LINDSAY Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us TASIOPOULOS, ERIN Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us NAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher bushale billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us	LAFERRIERE, SUSAN	Marshall	Special Education	slaferriere@billerica.k12.ma.us
MURPHY, KRISTIN Marshall Special Education ktmurphy@billerica.k12.ma.us NGOON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education mngoon@billerica.k12.ma.us PAPPAS, LINDSAY Marshall Special Education lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us TASIOPOULOS, ERIN Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us NAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall World Language burcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language ldomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us </td <td>MACDONALD, CHRISTINA</td> <td>Marshall</td> <td>Special Education</td> <td>cmacdonald@billerica.k12.ma.us</td>	MACDONALD, CHRISTINA	Marshall	Special Education	cmacdonald@billerica.k12.ma.us
NGOON, MARYANN Marshall Special Education mngoon@billerica.k12.ma.us PAPPAS, LINDSAY Marshall Special Education Ipappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us TASIOPOULOS, ERIN Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us NAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language Idomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language Idomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language Idomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall World Language Idomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma	MONDELLO, DEBRA	Marshall	Special Education	dmondello@billerica.k12.ma.us
PAPPAS, LINDSAY Marshall Special Education Ipappas@billerica.k12.ma.us SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us TASIOPOULOS, ERIN Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us NAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language Idomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach Cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher borden billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher borden billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher koronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher koronin@billerica.k12.ma.us	MURPHY, KRISTIN	Marshall	Special Education	ktmurphy@billerica.k12.ma.us
SLACK, DOROTHEA Marshall Special Education dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us TASIOPOULOS, ERIN Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us WALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us NAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language ldomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher bovenski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher bovenski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher bovenski@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher bovenski@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher coastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us	NGOON, MARYANN	Marshall	Special Education	mngoon@billerica.k12.ma.us
TASIOPOULOS, ERIN Marshall Special Education etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us NAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language ldomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher bovenski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher bovenski@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	PAPPAS, LINDSAY	Marshall	Special Education	lpappas@billerica.k12.ma.us
VALERAS, KYLEE Marshall Special Education kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us NAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language Idomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal gibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CARCUINE Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us	SLACK, DOROTHEA	Marshall	Special Education	dslack@billerica.k12.ma.us
NAWROCKI-MCELLIGOTT, PATRICIA Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language ldomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher iboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	TASIOPOULOS, ERIN	Marshall	Special Education	etasiopoulos@billerica.k12.ma.us
PATRICIA Marshall Title 1 pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language ldomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	VALERAS, KYLEE	Marshall	Special Education	kvaleras@billerica.k12.ma.us
BURKE, DIANE Marshall World Language dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language ldomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach Cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal Cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher archibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us				
DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA Marshall World Language Idomingueztapia@billerica.k12.ma.us FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach Cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal Cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	PATRICIA	Marshall	Title 1	pmcelligott@billerica.k12.ma.us
FITZGERALD, CARLA Marshall/Locke IT Coach cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher archibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us KCRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	BURKE, DIANE	Marshall	World Language	dburke@billerica.k12.ma.us
PETERSON, MARYANNE Parker Art mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher cousnach@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	DOMINGUEZ-TAPIA, LETICIA	Marshall	World Language	
WALLACE, MEGAN Parker Art mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher archibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	FITZGERALD, CARLA	Marshall/Locke	IT Coach	cfitzgerald@billerica.k12.ma.us
GIBELLI, CHRISTINE Parker Assistant Principal cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	PETERSON, MARYANNE	Parker	Art	mpeterson@billerica.k12.ma.us
ARCHIBALD, AMY Parker Elem Teacher BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher Elem Teacher BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher Elem Teacher BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher Castine@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher Castine@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher Castine@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher Castine@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	WALLACE, MEGAN	Parker	Art	mwallace@billerica.k12.ma.us
BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH Parker Elem Teacher jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	GIBELLI, CHRISTINE	Parker	Assistant Principal	cgibelli@billerica.k12.ma.us
BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN Parker Elem Teacher kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	ARCHIBALD, AMY	Parker	Elem Teacher	aarchibald@billerica.k12.ma.us
BOYD, JULIE Parker Elem Teacher jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	BOCZENOWSKI, JOSEPH	Parker	Elem Teacher	jboczenowski@billerica.k12.ma.us
BUKALA, ELIZABETH Parker Elem Teacher <u>ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us</u> BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher <u>cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us</u> CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher <u>ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us</u> CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher <u>kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us</u> DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher <u>kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us</u>	BOSSIDY-O'BRIEN, KATHLEEN	Parker	Elem Teacher	kobrien@billerica.k12.ma.us
BUSNACH, CAROLINE Parker Elem Teacher <u>cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us</u> CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher <u>ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us</u> CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher <u>kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us</u> DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher <u>kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us</u>	BOYD, JULIE	Parker	Elem Teacher	jboyd@billerica.k12.ma.us
CASTINE, CAREY Parker Elem Teacher cronin@billerica.k12.ma.us Elem Teacher DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	BUKALA, ELIZABETH	Parker	Elem Teacher	ebukala@billerica.k12.ma.us
CRONIN, KAREN Parker Elem Teacher kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us	BUSNACH, CAROLINE	Parker	Elem Teacher	cbusnach@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher <u>kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us</u>	CASTINE, CAREY	Parker	Elem Teacher	ccastine@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAGLE, KRISTEN Parker Elem Teacher <u>kdagle@billerica.k12.ma.us</u>	CRONIN, KAREN	Parker	Elem Teacher	kcronin@billerica.k12.ma.us
	DEMONICO, SARINA	Parker	Elem Teacher	smrancatore@yahoo.com

DIEDALA LATTE		EL T .	List is Obilly a land
DIFRAIA, LAURI	Parker	Elem Teacher	Idifraia@billerica.k12.ma.us
DUBOIS, CONSTANCE	Parker	Elem Teacher	cdubois@billerica.k12.ma.us
DULONG-TRINGALE, JENNIFER	Parker	Elem Teacher	jdulong@billerica.k12.ma.us
FRASER, JULIE	Parker	Elem Teacher	jfraser@billerica.k12.ma.us
GENTILE, SHERI	Parker	Elem Teacher	sgentile@billerica.k12.ma.us
GUSICK, VANESSA	Parker	Elem Teacher	vgusick@billerica.k12.ma.us
LEARNER, MELISSA	Parker	Elem Teacher	mlearner@billerica.k12.ma.us
LESKOUSKI, CHRISTINE	Parker	Elem Teacher	cleskouski@billerica.k12.ma.us
LONGO, KERRY	Parker	Elem Teacher	klongo@billerica.k12.ma.us
MAHER, LISA	Parker	Elem Teacher	Imaher@billerica.k12.ma.us
MCLAUGHLIN, LORI-ANN	Parker	Elem Teacher	lamclaughlin@billerica.k12.ma.us
PERCUOCO, DIANE	Parker	Elem Teacher	dpercuoco@billerica.k12.ma.us
POULOS, MICHELLE	Parker	Elem Teacher	mleininger@billerica.k12.ma.us
MCDONNELL, DONNA	Parker	Information Systems	dmcdonnell@billerica.k12.ma.us
HAMILTON, JANET	Parker	Librarian	jhamilton@billerica.k12.ma.us
BROTHERS, ROBYN	Parker	Music	rbrothers@billerica.k12.ma.us
SCHNELL, KAYLA	Parker	Music	kschnell@billerica.k12.ma.us
BELANGER, ROBERT	Parker	PE / Health	rbelanger@billerica.k12.ma.us
MCCAULLEY, NICHOLAS	Parker	PE / Health	nmccaulley@billerica.k12.ma.us
MARINO, RUSSELL	Parker	Principal	rmarino@billerica.k12.ma.us
HOLSINGER, TERRY	Parker	Reading	tholsinger@billerica.k12.ma.ua
MATTHEWS, HEATHER	Parker	Reading	hmatthews@billerica.k12.ma.us
BURNS, DIANA	Parker	Special Education	dburns@billerica.k12.ma.us
CAGGIANO, ALLISON	Parker	Special Education	abarrycaggiano@billerica.k12.ma.us
DAVIS, MELISSA	Parker	Special Education	mldavis@billerica.k12.ma.us
HIGGINS, ELIZABETH	Parker	Special Education	ehiggins@billerica.k12.ma.us
IATRON, MELISSA	Parker	Special Education	miatron@billerica.k12.ma.us
LEES, LAUREN	Parker	Special Education	llees@billerica.k12.ma.us
LEININGER, RACHEL	Parker	Special Education	rleininger@billerica.k12.ma.us
MELLUS, CLAIRE	Parker	Special Education	cmellus@billerica.k12.ma.us
MICHAUD, NICOLE	Parker	Special Education	nmichaud@billerica.k12.ma.us
MORRISON, JACLYN	Parker	Special Education	jmorrison@billerica.k12.ma.us
OLSEN, MICHELLE	Parker	Special Education	molsen@billerica.k12.ma.us
ROSA, LINDA	Parker	Special Education	Irosa@billerica.k12.ma.us
SANTOSUOSSO, LYNDSAY	Parker	Special Education	Isantosuosso@billerica.k12.ma.us
TOBIA, BETHANY	Parker	Special Education	btobia@billerica.k12.ma.us
WOODBURY, CAITLIN	Parker	Special Education	cwoodbury@billerica.k12.ma.us
VVOODBORT, CATLLIN	Project	Special Education	CWOODDII Y@DIIICIICA.K12.IIId.US
BORODA, ILENE	Support	Special Education	iboroda@billerica.k12.ma.us
	Project		
CASTRIANO, KATHLEEN	Support	Special Education	kcastriano@billerica.k12.ma.us
ENOS, TRICIA	Project	Special Education	tenos@billerica.k12.ma.us

	Support		
	Project		
FAIRWEATHER, SARAH	Support	Special Education	sfeeney@billerica.k12.ma.us
	Project		
GAUTHIER-HUARD, LORRAINE	Support	Special Education	<u>Ihuard@billerica.K12.ma.us</u>
	Project		
GIANINO, ALLISON	Support	Special Education	agianino@billerica.k12.ma.us
GREEN, PATRICIA	Project Support	Special Education	pgreen@billerica.k12.ma.us
GREEN, FATRICIA	Project	Special Education	pgreen@biiierica.k12.iiia.us
JOHNSON, ANN	Support	Special Education	ajohnson@billerica.k12.ma.us
	Project	· ·	
LACHANCE, KELLY	Support	Special Education	klachance@billerica.k12.ma.us
	Project		
LIVSEY, SHERRY	Support	Special Education	slivsey@billerica.k12.ma.us
LUMBERT, CATHY	Project Support	Special Education	clumbert@billerica.k12.ma.us
LOWIDERT, CATTI	Project	Special Education	Clambert@billerica.k12.ilia.us
MCCAFFREY, JENNIFER	Support	Special Education	jmccaffrey@billerica.k12.ma.us
,	Project	·	
MICHAUD, CAROL	Support	Special Education	cmichaud@billerica.k12.ma.us
	Project		
SANDS, NANCY	Support	Special Education	nsands@billerica.k12.ma.us
CALVANI, PEGGY	Vining	Elem Teacher	mcalvani@billerica.k12.ma.us
DIDONATO, LAURA	Vining	Elem Teacher	ldidonato@billerica.k12.ma.us
DOWNING, OLGA	Vining	Elem Teacher	odowning@billerica.k12.ma.us
KELLEY, CHRISTINE	Vining	Elem Teacher	ckelley@billerica.k12.ma.us
KOULOUNGIS, DAPHNE	Vining	Elem Teacher	dkouloungis@billerica.k12.ma.us
LIMOLI, KIMBERLY	Vining	Elem Teacher	klimoli@billerica.k12.ma.us
OUELLETTE, KARA	Vining	Elem Teacher	kouellette@billerica.k12.ma.us
REILLY, SHANNON	Vining	Elem Teacher	sreilly@billerica.k12.ma.us
ROY, JESSICA	Vining	Elem Teacher	jroy@billerica.k12.ma.us
SEWELL, ILONA	Vining	Elem Teacher	isewell@billerica.k12.ma.us
SPEIDEL, JOANN	Vining	Elem Teacher	jspeidel@billerica.k12.ma.us
SULLIVAN, KATHERINE	Vining	Elem Teacher	ksullivan@billerica.k12.ma.us
MCNAMARA, CATHERINE	Vining	Elem Teacher	cmcnamara@billerica.k12.ma.us
JOHNSON, KATHLEEN	Vining	Librarian	kjohnson@billerica.k12.ma.us
WEIDENBURNER, KARI	Vining	PE / Health	kweidenburner@billerica.k12.ma.us
HATEM, VICTORIA	Vining	Principal	vhatem@billerica.k12.ma.us
LINDBERG, LAURA	Vining	Reading	losullivan@billerica.k12.ma.us
NOLET-DOWNEY, MEGHAN	Vining	Special Education	mnolet-downey@billerica.k12.ma.us
PHILBROOK, KERRY	Vining	Special Education	kphilbrook@billerica.k12.ma.us
TURSKY, HOLLY	Vining	Special Education	htursky@billerica.k12.ma.us
WALKER, TARA	Vining	Special Education	twalker@billerica.k12.ma.us
		<u> </u>	
LUHRS, ELLEN	District	Music	eluhrs@billerica.k12.ma.us

FORMS

- Student Acceptable Use Policy for Technology
- General Communications Preference Form
- Photo/Video Opt Out Form (This Form is to be completed ONLY if you DO NOT wish your child's name or photograph used on the school/district website, released to the media or printed in school programs.)

BILLERICA SCHOOL DISTRICT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES

STUDENT ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

The school's information technology resources, including email and Internet access, are provided for educational purposes. Students are advised that they do not have any protected privacy relative to electronic or computerized communications of any nature if transmitted by or through the school's computer or electronic system. As a result, adherence to the following policy is necessary for continued access to the school's technological resources. Within the school, students are allowed to use only the school's electronic resources, which the school will attempt to protect with a school-installed filter/firewall.

Students must:

- 1. Respect and protect the privacy of others.
 - Use only assigned accounts.
 - Not view, use, or copy passwords, data, or networks to which they are not authorized.
 - Not distribute private information about others or themselves.
- 2. Respect and protect the integrity, availability, and security of all electronic resources.
 - Observe all network security practices, as posted.
 - Report security risks or violations to a teacher and/or information technology department.
 - Not destroy or damage data, networks, or other resources that do not belong to them, without expressed permission of the owner.
 - Conserve, protect, and share these resources with other students and Internet users.
- 3. Respect and protect the intellectual property of others.
 - Not infringe copyrights (no making illegal copies of music, games, or movies).
 - Not plagiarize.
- 4. Respect and practice the principles of community.
 - Communicate only in ways that are kind and respectful.
 - Report threatening or discomforting materials to a teacher.
 - Not intentionally access, transmit, copy, or create material that violates the school's code of conduct (such as messages that are pornographic, threatening, rude, discriminatory, or meant to bully, harass or otherwise unreasonably interfere with a student or staff member's right to access the educational program or worksite).
 - Not intentionally access, transmit, copy, or create material that is illegal (such as obscenity, stolen materials, or illegal copies of copyrighted works).
 - Not use the resources to further other acts that are criminal or violate the school's code of conduct.
 - Not send spam, chain letters, or other mass unsolicited mailings.
 - Not buy, sell, advertise, or otherwise conduct business, unless approved as a school project.

Students may, if in accord with the policy above

- 1. Design and post web pages and other material from school resources, within the resources provided by the district. (Example: Edline installed and provided by our district)
- 2. Use direct communications only on school provided resources.
- 3. Use the resources for educational purposes only.

<u>Consequences for Violation</u>: Violations of these rules may result in disciplinary action, including but not limited to the loss of a student's privileges to use the school's information technology resources.

<u>Supervision and Monitoring</u>: School and network administrators and their authorized employees monitor the use of information technology resources to help ensure that uses are secure and in conformity with this policy. Administrators reserve the right to examine, use, and disclose any data found on the school's information networks in order to further the health, safety, discipline, or security of any student or other person, or to protect property. They may also use this information in disciplinary actions, and will furnish evidence of crime to law enforcement.

I ACKNOWLEDGE AND UNDERSTAND MY OBLIGATIONS:

Student	Date
Parent/Guardian	 Date

This form must be returned to the Main Office of your child's school by Tuesday, September 15, 2014 in order for your child to use the available technology in his or her school

Parents please discuss these rules with your student to ensure he or she understands them. These Rules also provide a good framework for your student's use of computer at home, at libraries, or anywhere.

For more information, see www.cybercrime.gov.

Adopted: May 10, 2010

GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS PREFERENCE:

(This form should be filled out and returned to your child's school by September 19, 2014)

The Billerica Public Schools communicates with parents in a variety of ways, including email notifications, school and district website announcements, Aspen family portal notifications, phone calls, fliers, and notes sent home with your child(ren).

In an effort to save paper, the Billerica Public Schools will utilize email and website postings, along with Aspen family portal notifications, as the primary methods of communication. For parents, the greatest benefit of electronic communication is the timeliness of receiving notifications and the increased confidence that you will not miss important notices. All report cards and progress reports will be sent out electronically this year through the Aspen Family Portal and therefore parents will receive these important documents as soon as they are released. We encourage you to utilize electronic notifications as your primary form of communication.

Please indicate your communication preferences:

	_I wish to receive communication and notifications electronically when possible
	I do not use or have access to email or the internet—please provide me with paper copies
of essentia	al notifications

If your child's school doesn't receive this preference form by September 19, 2014, the district will provide you with electronic notifications when possible.

In May, 2014, the district sent out a letter to all families in Billerica with directions for accessing the Aspen Family Portal. Please utilize the information contained in that letter to set up your account. If you are not sure what your username and temporary password are, you may send an email to portalhelp@billerica.k12.ma.us to obtain the necessary information to set up your account.

PHOTO RELEASE OPT-OUT FORM

(This Form is to be completed ONLY if you DO NOT wish your child's name or photograph released to the media or printed in school programs.)

The Billerica Public School District uses images and sounds of students and staff participating in programs as a way of documenting the enjoyable and educational experiences they have within the Billerica schools. These images are often used on the child's school website, classroom page or the Billerica Public School District website. In addition, there are frequent occasions when students are photographed or videotaped by the news media, or their names may be published for recognition.

If you **do not** wish to have such information released to the news media, printed in school programs, or used on the district's website, please sign below. This is in compliance with the student's record release regulations and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974.

I DO NOT wish	's, name, photograph, or video image to be	
(child's name)		
released to the news media		
printed in school programs		
used on the school/district website		
(check only those that apply)		
Signed:	(parent or guardian)	
Date:		

If you are choosing to opt out your child from the release of photos or videos, this form must be returned to the main office of your child's school by September 19, 2014.